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CORRECTIVE AGREEMENT FOR RECYCLABLES PROCESSIN ’M‘S’KE"RVI('.“:ES‘(BETWEEN THE
CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE AND SUN RECYCLING, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY, AND BERGERON ENVIRONMENTAL AND RECYCLING LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY, JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY, d/b/a SUN- BERGERON JV

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this gﬂ_ day o %{201 , is by and between
the City of Fort Lauderdale, a Fiorida municipality, (“City"), whose adidress is 100 North Andrews
Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-1016,-and Sun Recycling LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
and Bergeron Environmental and Recycling, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, jointly and
severally, d/b/a Sun-Bergeron, JV, (“Contractor”), whose address is 2380 Coilege Avenue, Davie, FL
33317.

WHEREAS, on July 2, 2013, the City Commission of the City of Fort Lauderdale approved an
agreement with Contractor for the goods or services described herein; and

WHEREAS, this Corrective Agreement was created to incorporate, as applicable, addenda to
the City of Deerfield Beach's corresponding Invitation to Bid (“ITB”), and amend the performance
bond requirement to conform with the performance bond requirement contained in the City of
Deerfeld Beach’s ITB,

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in-consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the City and the Contractor covenant and agree as
follows:

1. The Contractor agrees to provide to the City recyclables processing services in
accordance with and in strict compliance with the speciﬁcations terms, conditions, and
requirements set forth in this Agreement.

2. This contract form G-110 Rev. 01/10, Recyclable?:’iL ssing_ Seyvices Agreement
between City of Deerfield Beach and the Contractor dated SEQ %Qﬁ (*City of Deerfield
Beach Agreement”) as amended by the paragraphs below, the City's General Terms and
Conditions (Attachment “A”), and Insurance requirements (Attachment “B”) are incorporated
herein,

3. The City of Deerfield Beach Agreement is amended as follows:

a. All references to “CITY” or “City of Deerfield Beach” shall mean the City of Fort
Lauderdale.

b. Section 6.5 Notices FOR CITY:

City Manager

City of Fort Lauderdale

100 North Andrews Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301



Telephone: (954) 828-5364

With a copy to: City Attorney
City of Fort Lauderdale
100 North Andrews Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Phone : 954-828-5037

4, The following references or sections of City of Deerfield Beach ITB #2012-12/22 dated April
29, 2013, as amended and modified by addenda, are not applicable or are revised as follows:

a.

h.

All references to solid waste disposal, Designated Receiving Facility, and Designated
Disposal Facility are excluded from this Agreement.

Section 1.2 Definitions - City shall mean City of Fort Lauderdale.

Section 1.2 Definitions - City Commission or Commission shall mean the governing
body of the City of Fort Lauderdale.

Section 1.2 Definitions - Contract Administrator shall mean the City of Fort Lauderdale
City Manager or designee. -

Section 1.2 Definitions - Contract Year means twelve (12) consecutive months
beginning on July 3, 2013, and every twelve (12) months thereafter for the term
of the Contract.

Section 1.2 Definitions - Holiday shall mean holiday recognized by the City of Fort
Lauderdal_e.

Section 1.4 is replaced with the following:

- The City of Fort Lauderdale, located on the southeast coast of Florida, is the
largest municipality in Broward County and the seventh largest city in Florida.
The City has a population of nearly 166,000.

City residential customers receive the following recyclables collection services:

Once per week automated collection of Single Stream Program Recyclables in
recycling carts.

The following reflects the quantity of Program Recyclables collected for FY2011
and FY2012:

FY2011 7,891 tons
FY2012 9,107 tons

Section 1.5 is not applicable.
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Section 1.6 is not applicable.
Section 1.7.1 Effective Date is July 3, 2013.
Section 1.7.3 Initial Term shall be July 3, 2013, through June 30, 2018.

Section 1.7.5 Contract Extension is repFacéd with:

In the event services are scheduled to end because of the expiration of this
contract, the Contractor shall continue the service upon the request of the City as
authorized by the awarding authority. The extension period shall not extend for
more than ninety (90) days beyond the expiration date of the existing confract.
The Contractor shall be compensated for the service at the rate in effect when
this extension clause is invoked by the City.

Section 1.9.1, and 1.9.2 are not applicable.
Section 1.10 is replaced with the following:

The Contractor shall within fifteen (15) working days after notification of award,
furnish to the City a Performance Bond, in the amount of 50% of the annual
contract amount as surety for faithful performance under the terms and
conditions of the contract. If the bond is on an annual coverage basis, renewal
for each succeeding year shall be submitted to the City thirty (30) days prior to
the termination date of the existing Payment and Performance Bond. The
Performance Bond must be executed by a surety company or recognized
standing to do business in the State of Florida and having a resident agent.

The Surety must have a Financial Size Categories (FSC) rating of no less than
“A-“ by the latest edition of Best's Key Rating Guide, or acceptance of insurance
company that holds a valid Florida Certificate of Authority issued by the State of
Florida, Department of Insurance, and are members of the Florida Guarantee
Fund. :

The Contractor shall attach a notarized letter from a surety, not a broker,
verifying that the Contractor has a bonding capacity in the amount of the
proposed price for faithful performance under this RFP.

Acknowledgement and agreement is given by both parties that the amount herein
set for the Payment and Performance Bond is not intended to be nor shall be
deemed to be in the nature of liquidated damages nor is it intended to limit the
liability of the Contractor to the City in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement by the Contractor.

Section 2 — Standard Terms and Conditions is not applicable.
Section 3.6.1 is not applicable.

Section 3.8 is not applicable.

Section 5.2.1 replace the second sentence with the following:



The City will only consider a Contractor whose proposed Designated Recycling
Facility is located within a fifteen (15) mile driving distance of the City's City Hall
and that is operational at the time of Bid submission.

s. Section 5.3.1 replace the first sentence with the following:

Beginning on the Commencement Date, to the extent consistent with the
corresponding contract, the City shall direct the City’s Contract Hauler, and also
City collection vehicles to deliver all Program Recyclables to the Desighated
Recycling Facility during the scheduled receiving hours specified herein.

t. Attachment “A” DRAFT CONTRACT is replaced with this document.

5. In the event of conflict between or among the contract documents, the order of priority
shall be as follows:

First, this contract form G-110 Rev. 01/10;
Second, City's General Terms and Conditions and Insurance Requirements;
Third, City of Deerfield Beach Agreement

8. The Company warrants that the goods and services supplied to the City pursuant to this
Contract shall at all times be of the highest quality. In the event the City, in the City’s sole
discretion, determines that any product or service supplied pursuant to this Contract is
defective the City reserves the right unilaterally to cancel an order or cancel this Contract upon
written notice to the Contractor, and reduce commensurately any amount of money due the
Contractor.

7. The City may cancel this Contract upon written notice to the Contractor in the event the
Contractor fails to furnish the goods or perform the services as described in this Contract
within 30 days following written notice to the Contractor.

8. The Contractor shall not present any invoice to the City that includes sales tax (85-
8012514506C-7) or federal excise tax (59-6000319).

9. Contractor shall direct all invoices in duplicate for payment to Finance Department, City
of Fort Lauderdale, 100 N. Andrews Avenue, 6th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301. Any
applicable discount MUST appear on the invoice_.



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the City and the Contractor execute this Contract as follows:

ATTEST:

By: / ' /Zmalv

Print Name: /4&/045” ?t,u A _ -

(Seal)

STATEOF _FLOLDA

- CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE

., Il

City Manager

Approvedr aé to fdrm:

Senior Askl#tant City Attorney

Sun Recycling, LLC

Print Name:
Title Managing Member

COUNTY OF _ B Row ARD

The foregoing mstrument was acknowledged before me this Jﬁ day of

Rit-

Gty ) 2 as managing

member for Sun Recycllng, LL a FIorlda Ilmlted liability company.

(SEAL

, " JOANM. LOMANGING

€5 MY COMMISSION # EE 840673
Jf  EXPIRES: October 3,2018

i Bunded TRl No1a1y Public Underwiiters

Personally Known /gR Produced ldentification

Type of ldentification Produced

Nota#gﬁjbnc, State of Feonion?
(Sigffature of Notary Public) S —

JOAN M LOMANGINO

(Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary ,,,
Public) —




ATTEST:

By: /// ﬁl\//?’\_,

Print Name: s ) Qlc,k\t?sz.
Title .

(Seal)

STATE OF ‘ . : :
COUNTY OF :

,The foregoing instrumept s acknowledged before me this é“" day of
Q%}-J , 201% b _55/ as managing
mernber for Bergeron Environmental and Recycling, LLC, @Floridaimited liability company.

(SEAL)

I\MS’EEJHWPOLEY
i MY COMMISSION # EE889833
_ Exmnss Apnl 01, 2017

iored Name of Notary

- YP
F’ubhc)

Personally Known / OR Produced Identification

Type of Identification Produced

LR ARMICE ] I MALL




Attachment “A”

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall furnish proof of insurance requirements as indicated below. The coverage
is to remain in force at all times during the contract period. The following minimum insurance
coverage is required. The City is fo be added as an “additional insured” with relation to General
Liability Insurance. This MUST be written in the description section of the insurance certificate,
even if you have a check-off box on your insurance certificate. Any costs for adding the City as
“additional insured” will be at the Contractor's expense.

The City of Fort Lauderdale shall be given notice 10 days prior to cancellation or modification
of any stipulated insurance. The insurance provided shall be endorsed or amended to comply
with this notice requirement. In the event that the insurer is unable to accommodate, it shall be
the responsibility of the Conftractor to provide the proper notice. Such notification will be in
writing by registered mail, return receipt requested and addressed to the Procurement
Services Department. :

The Contractor's insurance must be provided by an. A.M. Best's “A-“rated or better insurance
company authorized to issue insurance policies in the State of Florida, subject to approval by
the City’s Risk Manager. Any exclusions or provisions in the insurance maintained by the
Contractor that precludes coverage for work contemplated in this RFP shall be deemed
unacceptable, and shall be considered breach of contract.

Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance
Limits: Workers’ Compensation — Per Florida Statute 440
Employers’ Liability - $500,000

Any firm performing work on behalf of the City of Fort Lauderdale must provide Workers’
Compensation insurance. Exceptions and exemptions can only be made if they are in

accordance with Florida Statute. For additional information contact the Department of

Financial Services, Workers' Compensation Division at (850) 413-1601 or on the web at
www fldfs.com.

Commercial General Liability Insurance

Covering premises-operations, products-completed operations, independent
Contractors and contractual liability.

Limits: Combined single limit bodily injury/property damage $5,000,000.
This coverage must include, but not limited to:

a. Coverage for the liability assumed by the Contractor under the indemnity provision of
the contract.

b. Coverage for Premises/Operations
¢. Products/Completed Operations



d. Broad Form Contractual Liability
e. Independent Contractors

Pollution/Accidental Spill Insurance
Limit: $5,000,000

Automobile Liability Insurance
Covering all owned, hired and non-owned automobile equipment.
l.imits; Combined singte limit bodily injury/property damage $1,000,000.
A copy of ANY current Certificate of Insurance should be included with your proposal.

In the event that you are the successful bidder, you will be required to provide a certificate
naming the City as an “additional insured” for General Liability.

Certificate holder should be addressed as follows:
City of Fort Lauderdale
Procurement Services Division
100 N. Andrews Avenue, Room 619
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301



Attachment “B”

CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE
GENERAL CONDITIONS

These instructions ‘are standard for all contracts for commaodities or services issued through the City of Fort Lauderdale Procurement Services Division.
The City may delete, supersede, or modify any of these standard instructions for a particular contract by indicating such change in the Invitation to Bid
(ITB) Special Conditions, Technical Specifications, Instructions, Proposal Pages, Addenda, and Legal Advertisement. In this general conditions
document, Invitafion to Bid {ITB) and Request for Proposal {RFP) are interchangeable.

PART | BIDDER PROPOSAL PAGE(S) CONDITIONS:

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05
1.06

1.07

1.08

1.09

BIDDER ADDRESS: The City maintains automated vendor address lists that have been generated for each specific Commeodity Class item
through our bid issuing service, BidSync. Notices of Invitations to Bid (ITB'S) are sent by e-mail to the selsction of bidders who have fully
registered with BidSync or faxed (if applicable} to every vendor on those lists, who may then view the bid documents online. Bidders who
have been informed of a bid's availability in any other manner are responsible for registering with BidSync in order to view the bid decuments.
There is no fee for doing so. If you wish bid notifications be provided to another e-mail address or fax, please contact BidSyne. If you wish
purchase orders sent to a different address, please so indicate in your bid response If you wish payments sent to a different address, please
so indicate on your invoice.

DELIVERY: Time will be of the essence for any orders placed as a resuit of this ITB. The City reserves the right to cancel any orders, or part
thereof, without obligation if delivery is not made in accordance with the schedule specified by the Bidder and accepted by the City.

PAGKING SLIPS: It will be the responsibility of the awarded Contractor, to attach all packing slips to the OUTSIDE of each shipment.
Packing slips must provide a detailed description of what is to be received and reference the City of Fort Lauderdale purchase order number
that is associated with the shipment. Failure to provide a detailed packing slip aftached to the cutside of shipment may res ult in refusal of
shipment at Coniractor's expense,

PAYMENT TERMS AND CASH DISCOUNTS: Payment terms, unless otherwise stated in this ITB, will be considered to be net 45 days after
the date of satisfactory delivery at the place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified, whichever occurs last. Bidder
may offer cash discounts for prompt payment but they will not be considered in determination of award. if a Bidder offers a discount, it is

_understood that the discount time will be computed from the date of satisfactory delivery, at the place of acceptance, and receipt of correct

invoice, at the office specified, whichever occurs last.

TOTAL BID DISCOUNT: If Bidder offers a discount for award of all items listed in the bid, such discount shall be deducted from the total of
the firm net unit prices bid and shall be considered in tabulation and award of bid.

BIDS FIRM FOR ACCEPTANCE: Bidder warmrants, by virtue of bidding, that the bid and the prices quoted in the bid will be firm for
acceptance by the City for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of bid opening unless otherwise stated in the ITB.

VARIANCES: For purposes of bid evaluation, Bidder's must indicate any variances, no matter how slight, from ITB Genaral Gonditicns,
Special Conditions, Specifications or Addenda in the space provided in the ITB. No variations or exceptions by a Bidder will be considered or
desmed a part of the bid submitted unless such variances or exceptions are listed in the bid and referenced in the space provided on the
bidder proposal pages. If variances are not stated, or referenced as required, it will be assumed that the product or service fully complies with
the City's terms, conditions, and specifications.

By receiving a bid, City does not necessarily accept any variances contained in the bid. All variances submitted are subject to review and
pproval by the City. If any bid contains material variances that, in the City's sole opinion, make that bid conditional in nature, the City reserves
the right to reject the bid or part of the bid that is declared, by the City as conditional.

NO BIDS: If you do not intend to bid please indicate the reason, such as insufficient time to respond, do not offer product or service, unable to
maet specifications, schedule would not permit, or any other reason, in the space provided in this ITB. Failure ta bid or return no. bid
comments prior to the bid due and opening date and time, indicated in this ITB, may result in your firm being deleted fram our Bidder's
registration list for the Commeodity Class Item requested in this |TB,

MINOQRITY AND WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION AND BUSINESS DEFINITIONS: The Cify of Fort Lauderdale wants’

to increase the participation of Minority Business Enterprises {(MBE), Women Business Enterprises (WBE}, and Small Business Enterprises
(SBE) in its procurement acfivities, W your firm qualifies in accordance with the below definitions please indicate in the space provided in this
ITB.

Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) “A Minority Business” is a business enterprise that is ownad or controlled by one or more socially or
economicalty disadvantaged persons. Such disadvantage may arise from cultural, racial, chronic economic circumstances or bac kground or
other similar cause. Such persons include, but are not limited to: Blacks, Hispanics, Asian Americans, and Native Americans.

The term “Minority Business Enterprise” means a business at least 51 percent of which is owned by minority group members or, in the case of
publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock of which is owned by minority group members. For the purpose of the preceding
sentence, minority group members are citizens of the United States who include, but are not limited to: Blacks, Hispanics, Asian Americans,
and Native Americans.
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Women Business Enterprise (WBE) a “Women Owned or Centrolled Business” is a business enlerprise at least 51 percent of which is owned
by females or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock of which is owned by females.

Small Business Enterprise (SBE) "Small Business” means a corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity formed for the
purpose of making a profit, which is independently cwned and operated, has either fewer than 100 employees or less than $1,000,000 in
annual gross receipts.

BLACK, which includes persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

WHITE, which includes persons whose origins are Anglo-Saxon and Europeans and persons of Indo-European decent including Pakistani and
East Indian.

HISPANIC, which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central and South American, or other Spanish culture or origin,
regardless of race. |

NATIVE AMERICAN, which includes persons whose origins are American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, or Native Hawaiians.

ASIAN AMERICAN, which includes persons having origin in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands.

MINORITY-WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

Itis the desire of the City of Fort Lauderdale to increase the participation of minority (MBE) and women-owned (WBE) businesses in
its contracting and procurement programs. While the City does not have any preference or set aside programs in place, it is
committed to a policy of equitable participation for these firms. Proposers are requested to include in their proposals a narrative
describing thelr past accomplishments and intended actions in this area. If proposers are considering minority or women owned
enterprise participation in their proposal, those firms, and their specific duties have to be identified in the proposal. If a proposer is
considered for award, he or she will be asked to meet with City staff so that the intended MBEWBE participation can be formalized
and included in the subsequent contract. :

SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

This Section applies to any contract for goods or services of $1 million or more:

The Contractor certifles that it is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in the Iran Pefroleum Energy Sector List and that it does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria as provided in
section 287.135, Florida Statutes (2011), as may be amended or revised. The City may terminate this Confract at the City's option if
the Contractor Is found to have submitted a false certification as provided under subsection (5) of section 287.135, Florida Statutes
(2011}, as may be amended or revised, or been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized
Companies with Activities in the [ran Petroleum Energy Sector List or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, as
defined in Section 287.138, Florida Statutes (2011), as may be amended or revised.

DEBARRED OR SUSPENDED BIDDERS CR PROPOSERS
The bidder or proposer ceriifies, by submission of a response to this solicitation, that neither it nor its principals and
subcontractors are presently debarred or suspended by any Federal department or agency.

Part Il DEFINITIONS/ORDER OF PREGEDENCE:

BIDDING DEFINITIONS The City will use the following definilions in it's general conditions, special condifions, technical specifications,
instructions to bidders, addenda and any other document used in the bidding process:

INVITATION TO BID (ITB} when the City is requesting bids frem qualified Bidders.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) when the City is requesting proposals from qualified Proposers.

BID — a price and terms quote received in response to an |TB.

PROPOSAL — a proposal received in response to an RFP.

BIDDER - Person or firm submitting a Bid.

PROPOSER - Person or firm submitting a Proposal.

RESPONSIVE BIDDER — A person whose bid conforms in all material respects to the terms and conditions included in the [TB.

RESPONSIBLE BIDDER - A person who has the capability in all respects to perform in full the contract requlrements as stated in the ITB, nd
the infegrity and reliability that will assure good faith performance.

FIRST RANKED PROPOSER - That Proposer, responding to a City RFP, whose Proposal is deemed by the City, the most advantageous to
the City after applying the evaluation criteria contained in the RFP.

SELLER - Successful Bidder or Proposer who is awarded a Purchase Order or Contract fo provide goods or services to the City.
CONTRACTOR — Successful Bidder or Proposer who is awarded a Purchase Crder, award Contract, Blanket Purchase Order agreement, or
Term Contract to provide goods or services to the City.

CONTRACT - A deliberate verbal or written agreement between two or more competent parties to perform or not to perform a certain act or
acts, including all types of agreements, regardless of what they may be called, for the procurement or disposal of equipment, materials,
supplies, services or construction. ’

CONSULTANT - Successful Bidder or Proposer who is awarded a contract to provide professional services to the City.

The following terms may be used interchangeably by the City: [TB and/or RFP; Bid or Proposal, Bidder, Proposer, or Seller; Cantractor ar
Consultant; Contract, Award, Agreement or Purchase Order.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: Any and all Special Conditiens contained in this ITB that may be in variance or conflict with these General
Conditions shall have precedence over these General Conditions. If no changes or deletions to General Conditions are made in the Special
Conditions, then the General Conditions shall prevail in their entirety,

PART Il BIDDING AND AWARD PROCEDURES:
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3.06

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.08

3.10

3.1
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SUBMISSION AND RECEIPT OF BIDS: To receive consideration, bids must be received prior to the bid opening date and time. Unless
otherwise specified, Bidders should use the proposal forms provided by the City. These forms may be duplicated, but failure to use the forms
may cause the bid o be rejected. Any erasures or corrections on the bid must be made in ink and initialed by Bidder in ink. All information
submitted by the Bidder shall be printed, typewritten or filled in with pen and ink. Bids shall be signed in ink. Separate bids must be submitted
for each ITB issued by the City in separaie sealed envelopes properly marked. When a particular ITB or RFP requires multiple copies of bids
or proposals they may be included in a single envelope or package properly sealed and identified. Only send bids via facsimile transmission
(FAX) if the ITB specifically states that bids sent via FAX will be considered. If such a statement is not included in the [TB, bids sent via FAX
will be rejected. Bids will be publicly opened in the Procurement Office, or other designated area, in the presence of Bidders, the public, and
City staff. Bidders and the public are invited and encouraged to attend bid openings. Bids will be tabulated and made avail able for review by
Bidder's and the public in accordance with applicable regulations.

MODEL NUMBER CORRECTIONS: If the model number for the make specified in this ITB is incorrect, or no longer available and replaced
with an updated model with new specifications, the Bidder shall enter the correct model number on the bidder proposal page. In the case of
an updated model with new specifications, Bidder shall provide adequate information to allow the City to determine if the model bid meets the
City’s requirements.

PRICES QUOTED: Deduct trade discounts, and quote firm net prices. Give both unit price and extended total. Inthe case of a discrepancy
in computing the amount of the bid, the unit price quoted will govern. All prices quoted shall be F.Q.B. destination, freight prepaid (Bidder
pays and bears freight charges, Bidder cwns goods in transit and files any claims), unless ctherwise stated in Special Conditions. Each item
must be bid separately. No attempt shall be made to tie any item or items contained in the ITB with any other business with the City.

TAXES: The City of Fort Lauderdale is exempt from Federal Excise and Florida Sales taxes on direct purchase of tangible property.
Exemption number for EIN is §9-6000319, and State Sales tax exemption number is 85-8013875578C-1.

WARRANTIES CF USAGE: Any guantities listed in this ITB as estimated or projected are provided for tabulation and information purposes
only. No warranty or guarantae of quantities is given or implied. It is understood that the Contractor will furnish the City's needs as they arise.

APPROVED EQUAL: When the technical specifications call for a brand name, manufacturer, make, model, or vendor catalog number with
acceptance of APPROVED EQUAL, it shall be for the purpose of establishing a level of qualily and features desired and acceptable to the
City. In such cases, the City will be receptive fo any unit that would be considered by qualified City personnel as an approved equal. In that
the specified make and model represent a level of quality and features desired by the Gity, the Bidder must state clearly in the bid any
variance from those specifications. It is the Bidder's responsibility te provide adequate information, in the bid, to enable the City to ensure that
the bid meets the required criteria. If adequate information is not submitied with the bid, it may be rejected. The City will be the sole judge in
determining if the item bid qualifies as an approved equal.

MINIMUM AND MANDATORY TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS: The technical specifications- may include items that are considered
minimum, mandatory, or required. If any Bidder is unable to meet or exceed these items, and feels that the technical specifications are overly
restrictive, the bidder must noiify the Procurement Services Division immediately. Such notification must be received by the Procurement
Services Division prior to the deadline contained In the ITB, for quastions of a material nature, or prior to five {5) days before bid due and open
date, whichever occurs first. If no such notification is received prior to that deadline, the City will consider the technical specifications to be
acceptable to all hidders.

MISTAKES: Bidders are cautioned to examine all terms, conditions, specifications, drawings, exhibits, addenda, delivery instructions and
special conditions pertaining to the ITB. Failure of the Bidder to examine all pertinent decuments shall not entitle the bidder to any relief from
the conditions imposed in the contract. .

SAMPLES AND DEMONSTRATIONS: Samples or inspection of product may be requested to determine suitabifity. Unless otherwise
specified in Special Gonditions, samples shall be requested after the date of bid opening, and if requested should be received by the City
within seven (7) working days of request. Samples, when requested, must be furnished free of expense to the City and if not used in testing
or destroyed, will upon request of the Bidder, be returned within thirty (30) days of bid award at Bidder's expense. When required, the City
may request full demonstrations of units prior to award. When such demonstrations are requested, the Bidder shall respond promptly and
arrange a demonstration at a convenient location. Failure to provide samples or demonstrations as specified by the City may result in
rejection of a bid. :

LIFE CYCLE COSTING: If so specified in the ITB, the City may elect to evaluate equipment proposed on the basis of total cost of ownership.
In using Life Cycle Costing, factors such as the following may be considered: estimated useful life, maintenance costs, cost of supplies, labor
intensity, energy usage, environmental impact, and residual value. The City reserves the right to use those or other applicable criteria, in its
sole opinion that will most accurately estimate total cost of use and ownership.

BIDDING ITEMS WITH RECYCLED CONTENT: In addressing environmental concerns, the City of Fort l.auderdale encourages Bidders to
submit bids or alternate bids containing items with recycled content. When submitting bids containing items with recycled content, Bidder shall
provide documentation adequate for the City to verify the recycled content. The City prefers packaging consisting of materials that are
degradable or abie to be recycled. When specifically stated in the ITB, the City may give preference to bids containing items manufactured
with recycled material or packaging that is able to be recycled.

USE OF OTHER GOVERNMENTAL CONTRACTS: The City reserves the right to reject any part or all of any bids received and utilize other
available governmental contracts, if such action is in its best interest.

QUALIFICATIONS/INSPECTION: Bids will only be considerad from firms normally engaged in providing the types of commodities/services
specified hersin. The City reserves the right to inspect the Bidder's facilities, equipment, personnel, and organization at any time, or to take
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any other action necessary to determine Bidder's ability to perform. The Procurement Director reserves the right to reject bids where evidence
or evaluation is determined to indicate inability to perform.

BID SURETY: If Special Conditions require a bid security, it shall be submitted in the amount stated. A bid security can be in the form of a
bid bond or cashiers check. Bid security will be returned to the unsuccessful bidders as soon as practicable after opening of bids. Bid security
will be returned to the successful bidder after acceptance of the performance bond, if required; acceptance of insurance coverage, if required;
and full execution of centract documents, if required; or conditions as stated in Special Conditions.

PUBLIC RECORDS/TRADE SECRETS/COPYRIGHT: The Proposer's response to the RFP is a public recerd pursuant to Florida law, which
is subject to disclosure by the City under the State of Florida Public Recards Law, Florida Statutes Chapter 118.07 (“Public Records Law”).
The City shall permit public access to all documents, papers, tetters or other material submitted in connection with this RFP and the Contract
to be executed for this RFP, subject to the provisions of Chapter 119.07 of the Florida Statutes.

Any language contained in the Proposer’s response to the RFP purporting to require confidentiality of any portien of the Proposer's response
o the RFP, except to the extent that certain information is in the City's opinien a Trade Secret pursuant te Florida law, shall be void. If a
Proposer submits any documents or other infarmation to the City which the Proposer claims is Trade Secret information and exempt fram
Florida Statutes Chapter 118.07 (“Public Records |.aws™), the Proposer shall clearly designate that it is a Trade Secret and that it is asserting
that the document or information is exempt. The Proposer must specifically identify the exemption being claimed under Florida Statutes
119.07. The City shall be the final arbiter of whether any information contained in the Proposer’'s response to the RFP constitutes a Trade
Secret. The city's deterrnination of whether an exemption applies shall be final, and the proposer agrees to defend, indemnify, and hoid
harmless the city and the cily’s officers, employees, and agent, against any loss or damages incurred by any person or entity as a result of the
city's treatment of records as public records. Proposals purperting to be subject to copyright protection in full or in part will be rejected.

EXCEPT FOR CLEARLY MARKED PORTIONS THAT ARE BONA FIDE TRADE SECRETS PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW, DO NOT MARK
YOUR RESPONSE TO THE RFP AS PROPRIETARY OR CONFIDENTIAL. DO NOT MARK YOUR RESPONSE TO THE RFP OR ANY
PART THEREOF AS COPYRIGHTED.

PROHIBITION OF INTEREST: No contract will be awarded to a bidding firm who has City elected officials, officers or employees affiliated
with it, unless the bidding firm has fully complied with current Florida State Statutes and City Ordinances relating to this issue. Bidders must
disclose any such affiliation. Failure to disclose any such affiliation will result in disqualification of the Bidder and removal of the Bidder from
the City’s bidder lists and prohibiticn from engaging in-any business with the City.

RESERVATIONS FOR AWARD AND REJECTION OF BIDS: The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, part of bids, and
fo waive minor irregularities or variations to specifications contained in bids, and minoer irregularifies in the bidding process. The City also
reserves the right to award the contract on a split order basis, lump sum basis, individual item basis, or such combination as shall best serve
the interest of the City. The City reserves the right to make an award to the responsive and responsible bidder whose product or service
meets the terms, conditions, and specifications of the ITB and whose bid is considered to best serve the City's interest, In determining the
responsiveness of the offer and the responsibility of the Bidder, the following shall be considered when applicable: the ability, capacity and
skill of the Bidder to perform as required; whether the Bidder can perform promptly, or within the time specified, without deiay or interference;
the character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency of the Bidder; the quality of past perfermance by the Bidder; the
previous and existing compliance by the Bidder with related laws and erdinances; the sufficiency of the Bidder’s financial resources; the
availability, quality and adaptability of the Bidder's supplies or services to the required use; the ability of the Bidder to provide future
maintenance, service or parts; the number and scope of conditions attached to the bid.

if the ITB provides for a contract frial period, the City reserves the right, in the event the selected bidder does not perform satisfactorily, to
award a trial period to the next ranked bidder or fo award a contract to the next ranked bidder, if that bidder has successfully provided services
to the City in the past. This procedure to continue until a bidder is selacted or the contract is re-bid, at the sole opfion of the Gify.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS: Applicable provisions of all federal, state, county laws, and local ordinances, rules and regulations, shall govern
development, submittal and evaluation of all bids received in response hereto and shall govern any and all claims and disputes which may
arise between person(s) submitting a bid response hereto and the City by and through its officers, employees and authorized representatives,
or any other person, patural or otherwise; and lack of knowledge by any bidder shall not constitute a cognizable defense against the fegal
effect thereof.

BID PROTEST PROCEDURE: ANY PROPOSER OR BIDDER WHO 1S NOT RECOMMENDED FOR AWARD OF A CONTRACT AND
WHO ALLEGES A FAILURE BY THE CITY TO FOLLOW THE CITY'S PROGUREMENT ORDINANCE OR ANY APPLICABLE LAW MAY
PROTEST TO THE DIRECTOR OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION (DIRECTORY), BY DELIVERING A LETTER OF PROTEST TO
THE DIRECTOR WITHIN FIVE {5) DAYS AFTER A NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD IS POSTED ON THE CITY’S WEB SITE AT THE

FOLLOWING LINK: http://www.fortlanderdale.gov/purchasing/notices of intent.htm

THE COMPLETE PROTEST ORDINANCE MAY BE FOUND ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE AT THE FOLLOWING LINK:
http:/fwww.fortlauderdale.gov/purchasing/protestordinance. pdf '

PART IV BONDS AND INSURANCE

PERFORMANCE BOND: If a perfermance bond is required in Spacial Conditions, the Gontractor shall within fitteen. (15) working days after
notification of award, furnish to the City a Performance Bond, payable to the City of Fort Lauderdale, Florida, in the face amount specified in
Special Conditions as surety for faithful performance under the terms and conditions of the confract. If the bond is on an annual coverage
basis, renewal for each succeading year shall be submitted to the City thirty (30} days prior to the termination date of the existing Performance
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Bond. The Performance Bond must be executed by a surety company of recognized standing, authorized to do business in the State of
Fiorida and having a resident agent.

'Acknowledgement and agreement is given by both parties that the amount herein set for the Performance Bond is not intended to be nor shall

be deemed fo be in the nature of liquidated damages nor is it intended to limit the liability of the Contractor to the City in the event of a material
breach of this Agreement by the Contractor.

INSURANCE: If the Contractor is required to go on to City property to perform work or services as a result of ITB award, the Contractor shall
assume full responsibility and expense to obtain all necessary insurance as required by City or specified in Special Conditions.

The Contractar shalt provide to the Procurement Services Division original certificates of coverage and receive nofification of approval of those
certificates by the City’s Risk Manager prior fo engaging in any activities under this contracf. The Contractors insurance is subject to the
approval of the Gity's Risk Manager. The certificates must list the City as an ADDITIONAL INSURED for General Liabifity Insurance, and shall
have no less than thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or material change. Further modification of the insurance requirements may be
made at the sole discretion of the City’s Risk Manager if circumstances change or adequate protection of the City is nof presented. Bidder, by
submitting the bid, agrees to abide by such modifications.

PARTV PURCHASE ORDER AND CONTRACT TERMS:

COMPLIANCE TO SPECIFICATIONS, LATE DELIVERIES/PENALTIES: ltems offered may be tested for compliance to bid specifications.

ltems delivered which do not conform to bid specifications may be rejected and returned at Contractor's expense. Any vielation resulting in

contract termination for cause or delivery of items not conferming to specifications, or late delivery may also result in:

- Bidders name being removed. from the City's bidder’s mailing list for a specified period and Bidder will not be recommended for any
award during that period. :

- All City Departments being advised to refrain from doing business with the Bidder.

- All other remedies in law or equity.

ACCEPTANGE, CONDITION, AND PACKAGING: The material delivared in response to ITB award shall remain the properiy of the Seller
until a physical inspection is made and the material accepted to the satisfaction of the City. The material must comply fully with the terms of
the ITB, be of the required quality, new, and the latest model. All containers shall be suitable for storage and shipment by common carrier,
and all prices shall include standard commercial packaging. The City will not accept substitutes of any kind. Any substitutes or material not
meeting specifications will be returned at the Bidder's expense. Payment will be made only after City receipt and acceptance of materials or
services.

SAFETY STANDARDS: All manufactured items and fabricated assemblies shall comply with applicable requirements of the Occupation
Safety and Health Act of 1970 as amended, and be in compliance with Chapter 442, Florida Statutes. Any toxic substance listed in Section
38F-41.03 of the Florida Administrative Code delivered-as a result of this order must be accompanied by a completed Material Safety Data
Sheet (MSDS).

ASBESTOS STATEMENT: All material supplied must be 100% asbestas free. Bidder, by virtue of bidding, cerfifies that if awarded any
portion of the ITB the biddar will supply only material or equipment that is 100% asbestos free.

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES: [f the Bidder is awarded a confract as a result of this ITB, the bidder may, if the bidder has sufficient
capacity or quanfities available, provide to other governmental agencies, so requesting, the products or services awarded in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 1TB and resulting contract. Prices shall be F.O.B. delivered o the requesting agency.

VERBAL INSTRUCTIONS PROCEDURE: No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the Contractor as a resuit of
any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications which are in writing from an authorized City representative may be
considered. Only written communications from Contractors, which are assigned by a person designated as authorized to bind the Centractor,
will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of Contractors.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contfractor is an independent contractor under this Agreement. Personal services provided by the
Proposer shall be by employees of the Contractor and subjact to supervision by the Gontractor, and not as officers, employees, or agents of
the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security, health insurance, employee benefifs, procurement policies unless otherwise
stated in this ITB, and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this contract shalt be those of the
Contractor.

INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT: The Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and held harmless the City of Fort
Lauderdale and lis officers, employees and agents from and against any and all losses, penalfies, damages, settlements, claims, costs,
charges for other expenses, or liabilities of every and any kind including attorneys fees, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of
the work agreed to or performed by Contractor under the terms of any agreement that may arise due to the bidding process. Without limiting
the foregoing, any and all such claims, suits, or other actions relafing to personal injury, death, damage fo property, defects in materials or
workmanship, actual or alleged violations of any applicable Statute, ordinance, administrative order, rule or regulation, or decree of any court
shall be included in the indemnity hereunder.

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: I[f, through any cause, the Contractor shall fail to fuffill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this
Agreement, or if fhe Contractor shall violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the City may upon written notice to the Contractor
terminate the right of the Contractor to proceed under this Agreement, or with such part or parts of the Agreement as te which there has been
default, and may hold the Contractor liable for any damages caused to the City by reasen of such default and termination. In the event of
such termination, any completed services performed by the Contractor under this Agreement shall, at the option of the City, become the City's
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property and the Contractor shall be enfitled to receive equitable compensation for any work completed to the satisfaction of the City. The
Contractor, however, shall not be relieved of liability to the City for damages sustained by the City by reason of any breach of the Agreement
by the Contractor, and the City may withheld any payments to the Gontractor for the purpose of setoff until such time as the amount of
damages due to the City from the Contractor can be determined.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The City reserves the right, in its best interest as determined by the City, to cancel contract by giving
written notice to the Contractor thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such cancellation.

CANCELLATION FOR UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS: The ohligation of the City for payment fo a Contractor is limited to the availability of
funds appropriated in a current fiscal period, and continuation of the confract into a subsequent fiscal petied is subject to appropriation of
funds, unless atherwise authorized by faw.

RECORDS/AUDIT: The Contractor shall maintain during the term of the confract all books of account, reports and records in accerdance with
generally accepted accounting practices and standards for records directly related to this contract. The Contractor agrees to make availabie
fo the City Auditor or designee, during normal business hours and in Broward, Miami-Dade or Palm Beach Counties; all books of account,
reports and records relating to this contract should be retained for the duration of the contract and for three years after the final payment under
this Agreement, or until all pending audits, investigations or litigation matters relating to the confract are closed, whichever is later.

PERMITS, TAXES, LICENSES: The successful Contractor shall, at their own expense, oblain all necessary permits, pay all licenses, fees
and taxes, required to comply with all local ordinances, state and federal laws, rules and regulations applicable to business to be carried out
under this contract. ’

LAWS/ORDINANCES: The Contractor shall observe and comply with all Federal, state, local and municipal laws, ordinances rules and
regulatiens that would apply fo this confract.

NON-DISCRIMINATION: There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, creed, age or national crigin in the operations conducsted
under this contract,

UNUSUAL CIRCUMSTANCES: If during a confract term where costs to the City are to remain firm or adjustments are restricted by a
percentage or CPl cap, unusual circumstances that could not have been foreseen by either party of the contract occur, and those
circumstances significantly affect the Contractor's cost in providing the required prior items or services, then the Conifractor may request
adjusfrments to the costs to the City to reflect the changed circumistances. The circumstances must be beyond the contral of the Contractor,
and the requested adjustments must be fully documented. The City may, after examination, refuse to accept the adjusted costs if they are not
properly documented, increases are considered to be excessive, or decreases are considered to be insufficient. In the event the City does not
wish to accept the adjusted costs and the matter cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the City, the Gity will reserve the following options:

1. The confract can be canceled by the City upon giving thirty (30) days written nofice to the Contractor with no penalty to the City or
Contractor. The Contractor shall fill all City requirements submitted to the Contractor until the termination date contained in the notice.

2. The City requires the Contractor to continue to provide the items and services at the firm fixed (non-adjusted) cost until the termination of
the contract term then in effect.

3. [ the City, in its interest and in its sole opinion, determines that the Contractor in a capricious manner attempted to use this section of the
contract to relieve themselves of a legitimate obligation under the contract, and no unusual circumstances had accurred, the City
reserves the right to take any and all action under law or equity. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, declaring the Contractor
in default and disqualifying him for receiving any business from the City for a stated period of time.

If the City does agree to adjusied costs, these adjusted costs shall not be invoiced to the City until the Confractor receives notice in writing
signed by a person autharized to bind the City in such matters. .

ELIGIBILITY: If applicable, the Contractor must first register with the Department of State of the State of Florida, in accordance with Florida
State Statutes, prior to entering into a contract with the City.

PATENTS AND ROYALTIES: The Contractor, without exception, shall indemnify and save harmless the City and its employees from liability
of any nature and kind, including cost and expenses for or on account of any copyrighted, patented or un-patented invention, process, or
article manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, including its use by the City. If the Contractor uses any design, device, or
materials covered by letters, patent or copyright, it is mutually agreed and understood without exception that the bid prices shall include all
royalties or costs arising from the use of such design, device, or materials in any way involved in the work.

ASSIGNMENT: Contractor shall'not transfer or assign the performance required by this ITB without the prior written consent of the City. Any
award issued pursuant to this ITB, and the menies, which may become due hereunder, are not assignable except with the prior written
approval of the City Commission or the City Manager or City Manager's designee, depending on original award approval.

LITIGATION VENUE: The parties waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation between them in the state courts shall take place in
Broward County, Florida and that all litigation between them in the federal courts shall take place in the Southern District in and for the State of
Florida.

LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES: If the Contractor, for the purpose of responding to this solicitation, requests the location of
underground facilities through the Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. notification system or through any person or entity providing a
facility locating service, and underground facilities are marked with paint, stakes or other markings within the City pursuant to such a request,
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then the Contractor, shall be deemed non-responsive to this solicitation in accordance with Section 2-184(5) of the City of Fort Lauderdale
Ceode of Ordinances.

PUBLIC AGENCY CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES: If applicable, for each public agency contract for services, Contractor Is required
to comply with F.S. 119.0701, which Includes the following:

a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily wouid be required by the public agency in order to perform the service.

(b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the public agency would provide the records and at
a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.

(¢) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed
except as authorized by law.

(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the public agency, all public records in possession of the
contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
records disclosure requirements. All records siored electronically must be provided to the public agency in a format that is compatible with the
information technolegy systems of the public agency.






Section 5
Bid Package

Recyclables Processing Services
ITB #2012-13/22
SECOND AMMENDMENT

Submitted By:

Company Name: _ Sun-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, JV

Street Address: 2380 College Avenue

City/State/Zip: Davie, Florida 33317

Point of Contact; °pilip T. Medico, Jr.

Phone No.:_254-818.5866 pay 954.226.5470 E-Mall: —
- pmedico@southernwastesystems. com

BP-1



ITB #2012-13/22

Bid Certification o
{(Page 1 of 3) '

| have received, read and agree to the all terms and conditions as set forth in ITB #2012-13/22, -
Recyclables Processing Services. | hereby recognize and agree that upon execution by an authorized -
officer of the City of Deerfield Beach, this Bid Package, together with the ITB, the resulting Contract, and —
all other documents prepared by or on behalf of the City of Deerfleld Beach for this sclicitation, shall o
become a binding agreement between the parties for the services to be provided in accordance with the

terms and conditions set forth herein. | further certify that all information and documentation contained

within this Bid to ba true and correct.

‘ : e
Lonnie Bergeron

Printed Name / Signaturer -

Addendum Acknowledgment (if applicable):
Bidder acknowledges that the following addenda have been received and are included in his/her Bid

Package:

Addendum No. Date lssued -
1 ' May 7, 2013 o
2 May 10, 2013
3 May 17, 2013
4- May 21, 2013

Statement of No Bid (if a'ppiicab!e):
The above named company does not infend to submit a bid for the following reason: insufficient time to
respond, do not offer product or service, unable to meet specifications, schedule will not permit or any

other reason as stated:

Communications regarding this bid shall be addressed {o:

Company Name; _Sun-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, JV

Social Security No./ Federal Tax ID;_ 460847959

Proposer's Name (Print): Philip T. Medico, Jr. py, Vice President

2380 College Avenue _

Address:

Davie FL 33317
City State _ Zip Code B
Telephone: ( 954 ) B18-5866 Fax: ( 954 y_226.5470 B

E-mail. pmedico@southernwastesystems.com

Bp-2



ITB #2012-13/22

Bid Certification _
Page (2 of 3) o
Certification of Bidder, if an Individual N/A
STATE OF FLORIDA -
COUNTY OF BROWARD
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,2013 by
who s personally known fo me or who has produced
{type of identification), as identification.
NOTARY'S SEAL: N

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA 7 .
{Signature of Notary Taking Acknowledgment)

{Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
My Commission Expires:

Certification of Bidder, If a Partnership

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 23 day of May 2013 by
Lonnie Bergeron , partner on behalf Sun-Bergexon, JV {name of

partnership), a partnership. He/she|is parsonally known to me|or who ha’é produced

1),.as identification.

NOTARY'S SEAL:

1 MTARY PUBL%CKSTATE OF FLORIDA
(f :qq?& _‘_@f Notg Takmg Acknowledgmeit)

oWl

(Name? ?Ackhowledger Typﬁfi‘b Pqnted or Stamped)

My Commission Expires:

- BP-3



T8 #2012-13/22

Bid Certification
Page (3 of 3)

Certification of Bidder, If a Corporation NA

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BROWARD
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,2013 by

, as : (fitle)
of {Name of corporation}). He/sha is parsonally
known to me or who has produced (type of identification), as identification.
NOTARY'S SEAL:

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
(Signature of Notary Taking Acknowledgment)

{Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
My Commission Expires:

BP-4



ITB #2012-13/22

Bid Schedule for Racyclables Processing

Bidder understands that the extended amount for each item I8 2 result of muitiplying the estimated
quantity by the unit prices. Any multiplication errors shall be resolved in favor of the unit prices. Should
there be any discrepancy between the written and numerical amount, the written prevails.

Bidder shall enter the percentage of the Average Markst Value {AMV) less a Contractor's fee of $50.00
- that it will pay the City for each Ton of inbound Program Recyclables delivered by the City or its agents to
the Designated Recycling Facility, as determined by the Designated Recycling Facility scales.

The payment per Ton shail be calculated as follows:

Each menth, the Contractor shall calculate the AMV of the City's Program Recyclables, defined
as the sum of the Southeast USA regional average commodity prices (U.S. Dollars per Ton) first
posted in the month for which payment is being made in RecyclinaMarkets.net muitiplied by the
composition percentages of the City's Program Recyclables, as defined in the table below, which
calculates the AMV for March 2013.

Calculation of the March 2013 Average Market Value

Average
Index . Market - Market
. - Vahie. | = Value Material Valua

Materlal .__Index Déscription {Mar “13) {§/fTony. | - % {$/Tom)
Newspaper PS 8 baled, F.O.B. seller's dock 775 $77.50 17.0% $13.18
Corugated PS 11 baled, F.0.B. seller's dock 112.5 $11250 | 10.0% | $1125
Mixed paper PS 1 baled, F.0.B. seller's dock 70 $70.00 24.5% $17.15
Steel cans $/Ton, sarted, baled and delivered 115.0 $115.00 3.7% $4.26
Aluminum eans Ceniafb., sorted, baled and delivered 78.5 $1,590.00 2.4% $38.16
Plastics #3-#7 Commingled (#3-7, cants/b; baled and picked up) 0.3 - $6.00 5.3% $0.32
PET Cenis/ib., baled and picked up 208 $416.00 57% $23.71
Natural HOPE Cents/lb., baled and picked up 325 $650.00 2.2% $14.30
Colored HDPE Cants/Ib., baled and picked up 25.8 $516.00 3.2% $16.51
Glass (3 Mix} $/Ton, delivered 0.0 $0.00 | 225% . $0.00
Aseptic Contalners Nonae at this time 0.0 $0.00 0.5% $0.00
Contamination N/A N/A $0.00 3.0% $0.00
100.0% $138.84

Note: The index values for March 2013 are used far estimation purposes only, and are subject to fluctuation as delermined by
Secondary Fibers and Malerial Pricing found on RecyclingMarkets.ngt. Prices lo be used are the first published Regional
Average prices for the Southeast USA in the month for which payment is being made. No market index currently exists for
aseplic containers on RecyclingMarkels.net; therefore, the value is set at $0. When a market index for assptic containers or
polycoated carfons becomes available on RecyclingMarkets.net, it will be ufilized.

A fifty dollar ($50.00) Contractor's Fee shall be deducted from the AMV. This fee shall be
adjusted as specified in Section 3.6.2 of this ITB.

The Contractor shall pay the City a percentage, as bid below, of the remaining amount (AMV less
Contractor’s fee) for each Ton of inbound Program Recyclables delivered during that month.

BP-5



ITB #2012-13/22
Bid Schedule for Recyclabies Processing (continued)

Bidder shall enter in the yeliow cells, below, the percentage amount that it will pay the City for
inbound Program Recyclables,

The AMV is intended to be used as a market index and does not necessarily reflect the commaodity
revenue received by the Contractor; therefore, the Bidder should determine the Bid Percentage
accordingly.  Any and ali costs associated with processing, marketing, and transporting Program
Recyclables, including costs for rejects and residue disposal, are the responsibifity of the Contractor.

Program Recyclables Revenue Bid*

$138.84 -  $50.00 X ; 5 ¢ Bc%’ q\
15,01 o =5 ¢ q
fdarch 2013 Contractors fee Bid Percantage Gorresponding revenue per ton based on AMV and .
AMV L Bid Percéntage

* $fton based on March 203 AMV for estimatlon purposes only, and is subject o monihly, tatket fluctuation, as specified
herein, .

Written out Bid Percentage; €

Company Name: _ Sphi-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, Jv

Fca("ru{ Fw& | P@fw’r ‘Zefa? Bug Perent

Proposer's Name?’ Lonnie Bergeron

Manager
Title: - g
Signature?

May 23, 2013
Date: Y

BF-6



Qualification Statement

ITB #2012-13/22

The undersigned certifies under oath the truth and correctness of all statements and of all answers to
questions mada hereinafter:

Submitted to: City of Deerfield Beach
Address: Purchasing Division

Circlg One:
ration
Submitted By: Sun-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, IV  |partnership
Individual
Name: Lonnie Bergeron Other
Address: 2380 College Avenue
City, St., Zip Pavie, FL 33317

Note: Additional sheets may be attached if necessary.

1.

'b. State of Incorparation;

401 S.W. 4™ Street
Deerfield Beach, Fiorida 33441

State the true, exact, comect and complete name of the parinership, corporation, trade or fictitious
name under which you do business and the address of the place of business.

The correct name of the Bidder is: SUni-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, JV

The address of the principal place of businsss;__2380 College, Davie, FL 33317

If Bidder is a corﬁoration, answer the foliowing:

a. Date of incorporation:,

Na

c. President's name:
d. Vice Prasident's namé:
e. Secretary's name:
f. Treasurer's name;

g. Name and address of Resident Agent:

BP-7



ITB #2012-13/22

If Bidder is a partnership, answer the following:

a Date of organization; November 30, 2011 (written agreement)

b. Name, address and ownership units of all partners; Sunt_Recycling, LLC, { 50)

Bergeron Environmental & Recycling, LLC(SD)
19612 SW 69th Place, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33332
c. State whether general or fimited partnership: _General, operating as JV

If Bidder is other than an individual, corporation or paﬁnership, describe the organization and give
the name and address of principals: _

If Bidder is operating under a fictitious name, submit evidence of compliance with the Florida
Fictitious Name Statute, Attached - Sun-Bergeron, JV

How many years has your organization been in business under its present business name?____
See attached

s a Under what other former names has your organization operated?
None
h, How many years has your oompany besn in business providing the products or services

relevant to this ITB?
Through its JV Partner Sun Recycling since 2000.

c. How many government agencies has your company provided these products to and which
ones?

See attached

BP-8



10.

11.

12,

ITB #2012-13/22

Have you aver failed to complete any work awarded to you or defaulted on a contract? If so,
state when, where, and why?

No.

Will you be using any subcontractors? yes orno __NO-

a. if so, state the name, address, phone number, and tasks to be performed for each?

For purposes of determining any possible conflicts of interest, all bidders must disclose if any City
of Deerfield Beach employee is also an owner, or employee of their business. Indicate either
"yes" or "no". If yes, give person(s), name(s), and position(s) and you must file a statement with
the Supervisor of Elactiong, pursuant to Florida Statutes 112.313 with your business.

Yes No _ %X Name (s) and Position (s)

List the pertinent experience and qualifications of the Bidder, principals, and/or key personnel

- of-your-erganization as it relates to Section 1.8:2 of this ITB. (Continue on additional sheets, if

necessary).
See Attached

State the name of the individual who will have personal supervision of the services provided by
Bidder.

| John Casagrande

Briefly describe your firm's financial status, provide proof of adequate lines of credit or other
financial assets to access funds for payment, and provide evidence of your company's financial
stability. _

Sun-Bergeron, JV, with the financial backing of its Parent

& affiliated companies are financially sound. See the

attached Financial Statements and Banking Letters

& Guarantor Acknowledgement Forms

BP9
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ITB #2012-13/22 -

Briefly explain how your company wil correspond with the City of Deerfisld Beach. _

Sun-Bergeron, JV will correspond in person, by phone, and

electronic means or as the City desires. : -

Racyclables Processing Facllities

Deslgnated Processing Facility: Bidder shall identify the processing facility at which it would
process the City’s Program Recyclables for the tarm of the Contract. Such facility must be .
operational at the time of bid submittal. The City reserves the tight to conduct a site visit prior to
contract award.

Facility Name:

Facility Address:

Such facility must be properly permitted/licensed.  Documentation provided: Yesx Noo —

Such facility is an FDEP Certified Recavered Materials Dealer. ' :
Documentation provided: Yes x No o

Such facility must have the capacity to accept City’s Program Recyclables for the Term of the

Contract:

Current capacity (Tons/day, month, or year}:

Current throughput (Tons/day, month, or year); 3,500 Cubic Yards pexr day

Such facifity shall have no outstanding compliance issues, including but not limited to, unresolved
Notices of Violation angd Consent Orders. Documentation of ali Notices of Violation and Consent —
Orders received, by this facility, in the past five (5) years, is provided. None Yeso Nomx

Sun 2
2281 NW 16th Street, Pompanco Beach, FL 3306%

5,000 Cubic Yards per day

Designated Recycling Facility: Bidder shail Identify the facilliy at which the City's Program
Recyclables would be recelved, whether the finat processing facliity or a transfer station. Such
facility must be iocated within a ten {10} mile driving distance of the City’s Central City Campus
(401 S.W. 4™ Street, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441). Such facility must be operational at the time of
bid submittal, The City reserves the right to conduct a site visit prior to contract award.

Facility Name; __ Sun 2
Facility Address; _ 2281 NW 16th Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33063

Such facility must be properly permitiedflicensed.  Documentation provided:  Yes m No o

Such facllity must have the capacity to accept City’s Program Recyclables for the Term of the
Contract: _

Current capacity (Tons/day, month, or year); __ 5900 Cubic Yards per day
Current throughput {Tons/day, month, or year): 3,500 Cubic Yards per day —

Such faclility shall have no outstanding compliance issues, including but not limited to, unresoived
Notices of Violation and Consent Orders. Documentation of all Notices of Violation and Consent
Orders received, by this facility, in the past five (6} years, is provided. none Yes No XX

Alternate Processing Facility: Bidder shall identify the processing facility it will utifize if the
Designated Processing Facility is not operational. .

BP-10
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Facility Name: __ Sun 11 |
Facility Address: 1750 SW 43rd Terrace, Deerfield Beach, FL 33442

Such facility must have the capacity to accept City’s Program Recyclabtes untif the Designated
Facility is again fully operational:

Current capacity (Tons/day, month, oryear): 1,000 tons ]g'er day
Under construction

Current throughput (Tons/day, month, or year):

The Bidder acknowledges and understands that the information -centained in response fo this
qualifications statement shall be relied upon by the City in awarding the Contract and such information is
warranted by the Bidder to be true. The discovery of any omission or misstatement that materially affecta
the Bidder's qualifications {o perform under the Contract shall cause the Cily to reject the bid, and if after
the award to cancel and terminate the award and/or Contract.

i L i May 23, 2013
Bidder's Sagna’ture - , Date

BP-11
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Schedule “A"

" Gity of Deerfield Beach Disclosure Form
Applicant Seeking a City Contract

Name of Person Filing this Form: Lonnie Bergeron

' Principal for whom the signatory is acting: Sun-Bergeron, JV

Sun-Bergeron, JV

Name of Company Filing this Form:

Matter before the City Commission for which this is being filed: Recycling Processing Services, ITB
#2012-13722 _

Relati'cnship of signatory to _principai: Manager and Authorized Representative

Pursuant to Section 2-505 Chapter 2, Article IX, Known as the City of Deerfield Beach Ethics Code, City
1 of Deerfield Beach Ethics Code, any applicant for a land use change or development permit requiring
1 approval of the City Commission or any person/entity seeking a City agreement through ain Invitation to
i Bid, request for qualifications or sealed bids process must provide the following information:

1 (If not applicable, please indicate below. Do not leave blank)
{ (a) Inciude a listing of ali campaign contributions to a city commissioner in the past four {4) years, as

well as contributions of all officers, directors, shareholders of a corporation (if the applicant is a
corporation) or partners (if the applicant is a partnership), or members whether generally or

limited (if it's a limited liability company): See AHacka]

{b} Disclose all those items that a regulated officer is required to disclose conceming any conflict,
whether actionable or non actionable: Noh e

(c) Disclose any action that is a violation of this Ethics Code by a regulated officer with the applicant
and/or applicant's agents, and what was done to ;ectify the violation:

Bidder:

Sun-Bergeron, JV
Print Name

Signature

BP-12



Sun-Bergeron, JV

Schedule A - Disclosure Form

City of Deerfield Beach, ITB #2012-13/22
Pagelof1

| SUN-BERGERON, JV
SCHEDULE “A” — CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH DISCLOSURE FORM FOR -

RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES ITB #2012-13/22

Listing of all campaign contributions to a city commissioner in the past four (4) years, as well as
contributions of all officers, directors, shareholders of a corporation (if the applicant is a
corporation) or partners (if the applicant is a partnership), or members whether generally or
limited (if it's a limited liability company):

Southern Waste Systems, Inc., Sun Recycling LLC, and All Star Toilets contributed the

- following amounts to the campaigns of the following city commissioners: City Commissioner ,,,,
Joe Miller ($1,000); former City Commissioner Sylvia Poitier ($1,500); former City

Commissioner Martin Popelsky ($750); and former City Commissioner Peggy Noland ($1,500). -

Bergeron Land Development and its affiliated companies contributed a total amount of $2,500 to
the campaign of former City Commissioner Peggy Noland within the past four years.

BP-12(a)
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IT8 #2012-13/22

Fry
.

n

[

L

Bidder's-Name Signature- Date
STATE-QE-FLORIDA)
}SS:
COUNTY-ORBROWARD)
Sworn-to-and-subseribed-before-me-this day-of 2043

NOTARY'S-SEAL:

BP-14
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Indemnification Clause

The parties agree that one percent {1%) of the total compensation paid by Contractor for the work of the
contract shall constitute specific consideration to Contractor for the indemnification to be provided under
the Contract.

The Contractor shall at all times indemnify, hold harmless and, at City Attorney’s option, defend or pay
for an attorney selected by City Attorney to defend the Cily of Dearfield Beach, its officers, agents,
servants, and employees from and agalnst any and all causes of action, demands, claims, losses,
liabilities and expenditures of any kind, including attorney fees, court costs, and expenses, caused or
alleged to be caused by infentional or negligent act of, or omission of the Contractor, its employees,
agents, servants, or officers, or accruing, resulfing from, or related to the subject matter of this Contract
including, without limitation, any and all claims, losses, liabilities, expenditures, demands or causes of
action of any nature whatsoever resutting from Injuries or damages sustained by any person or property.
In the event any lawsuit or other proceeding is brought against the City by reason of any such claim,
cause of action or demand, the Contractor shall, upon written notice from the City, resist and defend
such lawsuit or proceeding by counsel satisfactory to the City or, at Clty's option, pay for an attomey
selected by the City Attorney to defend City. The provisions and obligations of this section shall survive

‘the explratlon or earller termmatlon of thls Contract Me—eaeten%ms@emé-neeeae&w—by—the—@en#aet

, . = by-Cily- Noth:ng prowded
herem shali effect or alter the Cltys sovere:gn [mmunlty Th:s prows:on shall be liberally construed in
favor of the City. ,

Sun-Bergeron, JV . - _ - 2013
Bidder's Name Signature C i Date

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2‘3 day of _MaY 2013 by
Lonnie Bergeron who is personally known tfo me |l or who has produced

pe of identification), as identification.

NOTARY'S SEAL:

Y COMMISSION # 5D 930514

(Name of Acknowledger Typed Prnnted or Stamped)
My Commission Expires;

BP-15(a)
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ITB #2012-13/22

Non-Collusive Affidavit

Sun-Bergeron, JV (Bidder's Mame) being first duly sworn, deposes and says
that:
1. He/she is the Representative (Owner, Partrner, Officer, Representative or
Agent) of _Sun-Bergeron, JV the Bidder that has submitted the attached proposat:
2. He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached proposal and of
all pertinent circumstances respecting such proposal;
3. Such proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham proposal;
4. Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, pariners, owners, agents, representatives,

employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired,
connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm, or person to submit a
collusive or sham proposal in connection with the work for which the attached proposal has been
submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such work; or have in any manner, directly
or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with and Bidder,
firm or person o fix the price or prices in the attached proposal or of any other Bidder, or to fix an
overhead, profit, or cost elements of the proposal price or the proposal price of any other Bidder,
or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreemsnt any
advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in tha proposed work; :

5. The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid Schedule are fair and proper and are not tainted by
any cotlusion, conspiracy, connivance, or uniawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any
other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in inferest, including this affiant.

 8un-Bergeron, JV - :ﬁiéty 23, 2013

Bidder's Name lS'i'g'hétiifé T Date

- STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___23  day of May 2013 by
Lonnie Bergeron who is personally known o me| or who has produced

ﬁtype of 1dent|f cat;on) as identification.

NOTARY'S SEAL:

N“TARY PUBLIC,5TATE OF FLORIDA T ete
(S:g turs_of Notary Takm Acknowledgment) 1 i EXPIRES: Apfilt1, 2014

APALA)

{Name of Acknowiedger T‘yped Printsd or ‘Stamped)
My Cemmission Expires;

BP-16
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{TB #2012-13/22

Drug-Free Workplace Form

The undersigned vendor in accordance with Florida Stalutes, Chapter 287, Section 287.087 hereby
certifies that _Sun-Bergeron, JV does:

(Name of Business)

1. Publish & statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions
that will be taken against employees for viclations of such prohibHion.

2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of
maintaining a drug-free workplace, any avallable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and empioyee
assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abtise violations.

3. Give each employes engaged in prbviding the commaodities or contractual services that are under
bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1).

4. in the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a cordition of working
on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of
the statement and witl notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any
violation of Florida Statutes, Chapter 893 or of any confrolled substance law of the United States or any
state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five {5) days after such conviction.

5 Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employse who is so
convicted.

6. Make a good faith effort to continue tc maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
this section.

As the person authorized to sign the statement, | certify that this firm complies fully with the above
requirements.

May 23, 2013
Date

Sun-Bergeron, JvV i
Bidder's Name Signature

BP-17



ITB #2012-13/22

Local Business Affidavit

STATE OF FLORIDA ) _— N A —
) |
COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, being first duly sworn, do hereby state under oath and under penalty of
perjury that the foliowing facis are true:

1. | am over the age of 18 and am a resident of the State of Florida.

2, I am the {title) of : and | certify that
| have the authority to make the representations set forth within this Affidavit.

3. I hereby certify that in accordance with requirements of Sections 38-116 and 38-128 of
the Deerfield Beach Code of Ordinances that:

(a) (Name of Business) has its principal place of
business at __ (Street
Address), Deerfield Beach, Florida {Zip Code).

{b) Attached is a copy of a Business Tax Receipt from the CRy of Deerfield Beach for
the above business and that such business has had a Business Tax Receipt from
the City of Deerfield Beach for a period of at least one year prior to the date of the

. bid solicitation.

(c)  Except as set forth below, the above referenced business has not had a history of
non-petformance, delinquent fees, liens or code violations: (If none please state
none below)

Executed this day of . 20
By,
- {Signature)
By,
{(Name and Title)

BP-18
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The foregoing was acknowledged before me this day of , 20, )
by 5 who is personally known to me or who has o
produced as identification and who did take an oath.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this __dayof 20

(NOTARY SEAL)

(Signature of person ta'king acknowledgment)

{Name of officer taking acknowiedgment)

typed, printed or stamped

(Title or rank)

My commission expires: . | ' {Serial number, if any)

BP-19
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ITB #2012-13/22

Bidder must provide at least three (3) references of customers to which it has provided services simifar to
those sought by the City. Referencés shall include name, title, telephone number, e-mail address,
mailing address, and a description of the services provided. The service description should include the
dates services were provided, the types of materials handled, annual tonnage disposad, and annual cost
of services. If available, such references should be representatives of Florida jurisdictions to which the
Bidder is currently providing, or has provided services within the last five (5) years.

Reference #1 for Recyclables Pracessing

See Attached

Government Name Papulation
Contact Name Contact Title

Contact Phone Contact Email

Dates of Service Materfals Handled

Annuai Tonnage Managed from Reference, Annual Cost_
Description of Services

Referance #2 for Recyclablés Processing

Government Name Population
Contact Name Contact Thile

Contact Phone Contact Email

Dates of Service Materials Handled

Annusal Tonnage Managed from Referance Annual Cosf
Daescription of Services

Reference #3 for Recyclables Processing

Government Name Population
Contact Name Contact Title

Contact Phone Contact Email

Dates of Service Materials Handted

Annual Tonnage Managed from Reference Annual Cost

Description of Services

{Continue on additional sheets, if necessary)

BP-20
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Variances to the ITB

State any variations to specifications, terms and conditions in the space provided below. No variations or
exceptions by the Bidder will be deemed to be part of the proposal submitted unless such variation or
exception is listed in the space provided below. If no statement is contained in the below space, it is
hereby implied that your proposal complies with the full scope of this ITB.

. None
Variances:

" Sun-Bergeron, JV
Company Name:

Bidder's Name (Print); __ Tonnie Bergeron

L3

Date: May 23, 2013

Signature:

BP-21
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B EACH

- City.af'
D EERFIELD

ADDENDUM #4

ITB # 2012-13/22
RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES

May 21, 2013

Our records indicate your firm is a plan holder of the above referenced (TB. The pdrposes of this
addendum are fo address vendor questions and make changes to the terms and conditions:

Questions and Answers: 1 through 51

Replace Pages: § with 5(a)
6 with 6(a)
9 with 9(a)
12 with 12(a)
13 with 13(a)
15 with 15(a)
16 with 16(a)
17 with 17(a) -
19 with 19(a)
24 with 24(a)
A-4 with A-4(a)
BP-15 with BP-15(a)
Notes: ‘ :
1. Words bold and undetlined are additions, words matked-threugh are deletions.
2. Al replacements affect Recyclables Processing Services, ITB #2012-13/22, SECOND
- AMMENDMENT as issued through the release of Addendum #2, dated May 10, 2013.

A signed copy of this addendum shall be included in your bid, due Tuesday, May 28, 2013 at 11:00 a.m.

David Santucci, CPPB
Purchasing Manger
City of Deerfigld Beach

. May 23, 2013
Lonnie Berger

Bidder's Name and Signature e Date
Sun-Bergeron, JV

Company Name



BEACH

Cztyof-
| DEERFHELD
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ADDENDUM #3

ITB # 2012-13/22
RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES

May 17, 2013

Qur records indicate your firm is a plan hoider of the ahove referenced ITB. The purpose of this
addendurn is to extend the Bid Opening {Due Date) fo allow the City to address vendor questions
received by the Last Day for Questions due date, May 15, 2013, only. No additional vendoer questions will
be addressed. The City anticipates releasing a subsequent addendum no !ater than Tuesday, May 21,
2013. _

BID OPENING {DUE BATE): Tuesday May, 28, 2013 at 10:00 a.m.

A signed copy of this addendum shzll be included in your proposal due Tuesday, May 28, 2013 at 10 00
a.m.

David Santucci, CPPB
Purchasing Manger
City of Deerfield Beach

- _ May 23, 2013
Bidder's Name and Signature “ Date

Sun-Bergeron, JV

Company Narme



ADDENDUM #2

ITB # 2012-13/22
RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES

May 10, 2013

Our records indicate your firm is a plan holder of the above referenced ITB. The purpose of this

addendum is to:

1.
2!

Refresh the ITB document, incorporating all changes (deletions and additions) made in Addendum
#1. Please note, the table of contents and section numbering has changed accordingly.

Amend Section 2.17, Protest Procedures. Section 38-139 of the City of Deerfield Beach Code of
Ordinances was amended by the City Commission at the May 7, 2013 Regular City Commission
Meeting, Resolution No. 2013/016.

Provide notification that Section 2.27, Local Business Preference Program does not require any
changes.

Remove Sectlon 2.28, Small Disadvantaged Business Entity (SDBE} and related forms. The SDBE
requirement was waived by the City Commission at the May 7, 2013 Regular City Commission
Mesting, Resolution No. 2013/095.

Provide nofification of changes to the following sections, beyond those mentioned above:

1.8 - Bidder's Qualifications

3.3 - Contract Award

3.7 - Required Documents

4.9 - Liquidated Damages

BP-9, Qualification Statement, Question 10

Address a vendor question.

Q. As per section 1.8.2 Designated Recycling Facility to be within 10 miles from City's Central
Campus. Cur facility Is 13.1 miles. Just 3.1 miles more. Would the City extend the radius? or
Would this limit our bid participation, due to the 3.1 miles more from the 10 miles proposed on this
ITB.

A. The City will not extend the radius. Bids recsived from firns which do not meet the minimum
requirements and qualifications will be deemed non-responsive.



ADDENDUM #2

ITB # 2012-13/22
RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES
- (CONT’D) |

Included as an attachment to this addendum is an amended |TB #2012-13/22, Recyclables Processing
Services. The amended ITB is labeled SECOND AMMENDMENT. Bidder's shall reference and submit

the required documents contained in {TB #2012-13/22, Recycling Processing Semvices, SECOND
AMMENDMENT only. Words bold and underlined are additions, words marked-through are deletions.

A signed copy of this addendum shall be included in your bid, due Wednesday, May 22, 2013 at 11:00
am, :

David Santucci, CPPB
Purchasing Manger
City of Deerfield Beach

The undersigned hereby understands and acknowledges that ITB #2012-13/22, Recyclables Processing
Services does not include in any way solid waste disposal services,

May 23, 2013
Date

Lonnie Bergero?"" = P P g

Proposer's Name and Signature bl
Sun-Bergeron, JV

Company Name




ADDENDUM #1

ITB # 2012-13/22
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES

May 7, 2013

Qur records ndicate your firm is a plan holder of the above referenced |TB.

1.

You are hereby notified that the City Commission at the May 1, 2013 Special Gommission
Meeting approved by motion the termination of the solid waste disposal portion of ITB #2012-
13/22 and issue an addendum to the [TB eliminating the solid waste disposal portion and keeping
the recycling portion of the ITR.

The purpose of this addendum is to remove solid waste disposal from the ITB title, document,
and scope of services.

The Title of ITB # 2012-13/22 shall now be Recyclebles Processing Services. ,
Included as an attachment fo this addendum is an amended ITB #2012-13/22, Recyclables
Processing Services. Words bold and underlined are additions, words marked—through are
deletions.

* Any remaining reference to solid waste disposal or terms related thersto shall be considered

immaterial, as this ITB is for Recyclables Processing Services only.

A signed copy of this addendum shall be included in your proposal, due Wednesday, May 22, 2013 at
11:00 a.m,

David Santucci, CPPB
Purchasing Manger
City of Deerfield Beach

The undersigned hereby understands and acknowledges that ITB #2012-13/22, Recyclables Processing
Services does not include in any way solid waste disposal services.

Lonnie Bergeﬁg

May 23, 2012

Proposer's Name and Sighature - & Date:

sSun-Bergeron, JV

Company Name




Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

APPLICATICN FOR REGISTRATION OF FICTITIOUS NAME
Note: Acknowledgements/certificates will be sent to the addresg In Section 1 only,

1 ]

1. Sun-Bergercn,JV
Fletittaug Name lo be Registersd (ssa instructions tF name Includas "Corp™ or “inc™)

2380 Collage Ave.
Maling Address of Business
Davie, Florida

City _ State
3. Florida County of principal place of business:

33317
Zin Gode
‘Broward

{sae instructlons If mare ihan one county}

FEI Numbear: 46-0847858

1 OO0
139 1[];12--—01351 -—BU*E
1 2DIODSES3Y

S327
#5350, 00

08710/ 12--01051--005  ##10.00

This spaae for office use only

A. Owner(s) of Fictitious Name If individual{s): (Use an attachment if necessary):

1. 2.
Last Flrst M. Lasl First L
Address Addrass
Clly State Zip Code ' Cly Slala Zip Cade

B. Owner(s) of Flatitious Name If other than an indlvidual: {(Use attachment 1f necessary):

{.  GunRecycling,LLG ' o Bergeron Environmental And Recycling, LLE
Eniity Name R ) Enilry Name |
780 Hillbrath Or. 2380 ColiggerAve.
Addrass Address o
, Lantana, Flonda 33462 Davie Florida 33317
Glty Slale Zip Code City Sia1e 2ip Cade
Florida Document Number L. 00000000877 Florida Document Numnber _L0S000012880
FE! Number: 850977012 FEI Number: 264516715 _
O Applied for 3 Not Applicable £ Ap) [1 Not Applicable

Section 865,08, F.S., | further certify That

fice in & newspaper a8 defined in chapter

50, Flarida Statutes, in the county where al plac 1 fgnature below shall havs the same legal
affact as if made under oalh and | am awars thal False mfnrmstion aubriiled in a document 16 fhe:Dapartment of State constitutes 2 third degree
felony ?ﬂ% SW )
September 21, 2012 cgusmana @swstl.com
Slgnaluta of Owner Data E-mail address: (o be vssd for fulurg renswal nolification)
| Phane Number: 561-5826888 Is
FOR CANCELLATION COMPLETE SECTION 4 ONLY:
FOR FICTITIOUS NAME OR OWNERSHIP CHANGE COMPLETE SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 4:
| (we) the undersigned, hereby cancel the fictitious name
, which was registered on and was assigned
ragistration number

Signatura of Owner Date

Signature of Qwner

Dale

Mark the applicable boxes [ Carlificate of Status — $10

Ceriified Copy — $30

NON-REFUNDABLE PROCESSING FEE: 850

CR4EDD (9/10}

A% 7X?& %z-




Dated: May 22, 2013

" FTLDOCS 62138342

Sun Recycling; LG
# f{" S S
By: R

o
i o T
g

Name: CM‘M&E{ GYL A /O

Tite: /M ANAL A
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Sun-Bergeron, JV
Additional Materials
City of Deerficld Beach, ITB #2012-13/22
Page 1 of 19

SUN-BERGERON, JV _

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS FOR CITY OF DEERFIELD BEACH, RECYCLABLES
PROCESSING SERVICES ITB #2012-13/22 _

6. How many years has your organization been in business under its present business
name.

Sun-Bergeron Solid Waste Services, JV, has been in business under its present name since June
2011 as a general partmership, which was memorialized on November 30, 2011, Sun-Bergeron
Solid Waste Services, JV is comprised of two entities. Sun Recycling, LLC, and Bergeron
Environmental & Recycling, LLC. Sun Recycling, LLC has been in business under its present
business name since January 26, 2000. As shown by the attached consolidated Financial -
Statements, Sun Recycling, LLC is affiliated with Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC '
and Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP. Bergeron Environmental & Recycling, LLC, has -
been in business under its present business name since February 6, 2009. Bergeron

Environmental & Recycling, LLC, is affiliated with Bergeron Land Development, Inc. and

subsidiaries and Bergeron Sand & Rock Mining, Inc.

c How many governmental agencies has your company proﬁded these products to
and which one?

Sun Bergeron JV is comprised of two experienced companies: Sun Recycling, LLC (Sun) and
Bergeron Environmental and Recycling, LLC (Bergeron). Sun Recycling has thirteen years’
experience in solid waste disposal services and Bergeron, acting as a division of its affiliated
company, has three years’ of experience in disposal services.

Sun and its wholly owned affiliates are among the leading firms in South Florida for the
processing and hauling of Garbage, Construction and Demolition Debris, Yard Waste, and Bulk
Trash (collectively “Solid Waste™), and their transition into usable products. The Key Personnel
of Sun Bergeron collectively have over 160 years of experience in the Solid Waste industry,
including in Recyclables Processing Services.

The following is a list of current governmental entities that Sun services on a regular basis and
during storm events.

* Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach — Population 1,274,013, Hurricane debris
removal.

H* % % #

* City of Deerfield Beach - Population 75,160, Processing contracts. .
City of Boynton Beach — Population 65,601. Processing contracts. _ -
City of Hallandale Beach ~ --Population 37,800. Processing contracts. —
City of Lake Worth — Population 36,040. Processing contracts. o
City of Oakland Park — Population: 42,341. Processing contracts.
BP—8
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¥ City of South Bay —Population 4,702. Curbside residential collection
contract.

¥ City of Pahokee —Population 6,352,  Curbside residential collection
contract '

* Town of Haverhill - Population 1,553. Curbside residential collection
contract

* Fisher Island, Miami FL — Municipal Solid Waste (MSW), yard waste, construction
and demolition debris, exclusive contract for hauling and transferring, _

Further, through its Key Personnel, including John Casagrande, Vice President of Business
Development and Responsible for Recyclables Processing, from 1998 to 2008, who was directly
responsible for the strategic planning and complete operational execution of the Reuters Material
- Recovery Facility. This included the successful bid and award of the Miami Dade County
processing agreement that delivered over 60,000 tons annually of single stream material the
MRF. He also orchestrated the acquisition and management of the BFI MRF in Davie which was
being used to process the ILA tons prior to being relocated to Pembroke Pines, In 2008 John and
his team rencgotiated the ILA extension to process the Broward county tons currently in place
today.

Please see Sun-Bergeron, JV’s response to the Minimum Qualifications and References for
additional information.

BP-—8
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Minimum Qualifications

10. Pertinent experience and qualifications of the Bidder, principals, and/or key personnel
as it relates to Section 1.8 of the ITB. Sun-Bergeron, JV, its key personnel (e.g., owners or
full-time managers, supervisors, or lead personnel assigned to the project), have at least
five (5) years experience in providing processing services of similar scope (tonnage) to the
City of Deerfield Beach

In addition to its references below and other information contained in this bid, please see the Key
Personne] Narrative Resumes below that establishes Sun-Bergeron, JV’s and its Key Personnel
meet the minimum qualifications.

1. Anthony Lomangino — Managing Member and Founder (Narrative

Resume, Background, and Experience)

Anthony Lomangino as founder and Chairman of Southern Wastes Systems LLC and
affiliate companies Sun Recycling, Sun Disposal, and All Star Toilets has over 36 years’
experience in the solid waste and recycling industry, including Garbage, and 13 years with SWS.
He has throughout his career been a pioneer and innovator of processes and technology that have
advanced the collection, recycling and disposal of residential and commercial waste.

A graduate of St. John’s University, Mr. Lomangino holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Accounting and Business Administration. After owning and operating a successful retail
business he joined Allied Sanitation, a company that was started 25 years prior to his arrival by
his brothers. When he joined as Treasurer, the company was a one-truck operation. He
immediately was involved in finance, operations and public relations. With keen foresight and
strong business acumen, he led the team to form Star Recycling. Investing in state of the art
recycling facilities, the organization was ahead of the curve in regards to the waste disposal crisis
that was to face New York City during that time period and they became pioneers in the
recycling industry.

Under Lomangino’s direction, he transformed the company into a full-service vertically
integrated solid waste management organization, engaged in all aspects of the disposal and
processing of Garbage and Solid Waste that grew to be the 14th largest privately owned waste
company in the nation with annual revenues in excess of 3125 million dollars. The company was
sold to Waste Management in 1996. Thus, apart from his experience with Sun, Mr. Lomangino
has extensive experience in the Northeast United States processing and recovering materials
from Garbage, Class I municipal solid waste.

Anthony carried his progressive entrepreneurial skills to the South Florida market with
the founding of Southern Waste Systems. SWS’ is the leading independently owned company in
Florida for the collection and recycling Solid Waste, including of construction and demolition
materials. In addition, the organization is focused on the transition of the recyclable industrial
materials into usable products, With eleven facilities conveniently located throughout South
Florida, the organization currently recycles up to 90% of the materials (C&D, Yard Trash, and
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Bulk) they collect. This recycling returns useful material to the economy and saves valuable
landfill space and preserves the environment.

For this contract, Mr. Lomangine’s role will be to have oversight of all facility operations
including all transfer stations, mixed waste processing facilities, and negotiating all the terms and
conditions of the short term and long term disposal contacts with all landfill facilities and waste
to energy facilities. Mr. Lomangirio will manage the joint venture with Ron Bergeron, Sr. It is
anticipated that 25% percent of his time will be committed to providing disposal services.

In addition to contributing to a number of charities in the communities in which he has
lived, Mr. Lomangino spent many years giving of his time as a Little League Baseball coach and
as a Catechism teacher. He taught most recently at St. Christopher's Catholic Church in Hobe
Sound, Florida. He served many years as a Board member of the National Reining Horse
Association and the Long Island Reining Horse Association.

Anthony has served throughout his career in many leadership positions in his industry
including as 2 member of Solid Waste Advisory Boards in a variety of communities and was
appointed a seat on the Railroad-Shipper Transportation Advisory Council to the National
Surface Transportation Board in Washington D.C. and has completed a FLSI Certification in the
Flippen Leadership Series.

He is a recipient of the Ellis Island Medal of Honor, awarded by the National Ethnic
Coalition of Organizations. He was named to the Crain’s Top 40 under 40 in New York City in
1989. Anthony is the recipient of the Man of the Year Award from Boys Town of Italy and was
most recently the Honorary Survivor Chairman of the Palm Beach County Susan G. Komen
education luncheon. :

2. Charles Lomangine — General Manager (Narrative Resuxhe,
Background, and Experience) : :

‘As Co-Owner and General Manager of SWS and All Star, Charles Lomangino is
responsible for the staffing and supervision of the trucking and hauling operation for both SWS
and All Star.

Lomangino began working in the trucking operations of SWS and the recycling
operations of Sun Recycling in the summers while attending college. With a strong work ethic,
he focused on learning all aspects of the business. e has held a variety of positions including
recycling yard operator, large equipment operator, truck driver and customer service
representative. He truly understands firsthand, the work that he icads his team to accomplish on a
daily basis. :

A graduate of Florida Atlantic University, Lomangino holds a Bachelor’s degree in

Business Management. A strong team leader throughout his life, he brings his leadership skills to

the operations of SWS.
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Founder of All Star Toilets, Lomangino originally added the company to enhance the
overall service to his roll off customers on construction sites. He has strategically positioned the
company to broaden its offerings with state of the art equipment that now services large special
events like the Honda Classic, Artigras Fine Arts Festival, the Palm Beach Marathon Festival
and the South Florida Fair in addition to the construction industry.

After founding and operating the highly successful All Star Recycling and All Star
Toilets Lomangino merged the roll off division of the company with SWS in 2008 and increased
the operations of All Star.

As part of the Executive team of Southern Waste Systems, LLC and its affiliate
companies he is instrumental in the s strategic planning and operation of all companies. Charles
has been KOHL Certified in the operations of C&D Recycling facilities and has completed FLSI
Certification in the Flippen Leadership Series.

3, . Charles Gusmano — President (Narrative Resume, Background, and
Experience) '

Mr. Charles Gusmano is the Co-Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Southern Waste
Systems LLC and its affiliate companies Sun Recycling, Sun Disposal and All Star Toilets,
Charles Gusmano brings over 29 years of leadership experience in the solid waste industry,
including the processing and disposal of Garbage. He has been with SWS for 13 years. The
combination of his expertise in strategic planning and facility operations has been a foundation
for the growth of the organization.

With a focus on learning every facet of the industry he brings a strong back ground in
municipal marketing and facility operations. His expertise includes market entry, expansion and
operations in all facets of Solid Waste management, including the processing and disposal of
Garbage. From his first job driving a garbage truck on a route during summers and holidays at
Allied Sanitation while attending high school and then Hofstra University in Hempstead, New
York, where he obtained a Bachelor of Science in Accounting, to eventually running the Long
Island, New York operation, he has extensive experience and knowledge of running residential
collection operations. Experience includes cities as large as Islip, New York with 80,000 homes
to all of the communities, small and large, atong the North Shore of Long Island. This experience
includes literally hundreds of thousands of homes offering the diversity of major metropolitan
areas to rural areas.

He was employed by Allied Sanitation and after the sale of Allied to Waste Management
in 1999, Mr. Gusmano was selected to join the Waste Management Executive team as the
Division Manager of the New York City and Long Island area. His responsibilities in that
position included direct responsibility for more than $125 million in annual revenue, negotiating
transportation and disposal agreements for the logistical movement and disposal of Garbage and
other Solid Waste {rom transfer stations, waste processing facilities and residential collection.

He has served throughout his career as a member of a number of industry organizations
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and is currently 2 member of the NSWMA Chairman's Council and the Old Palm Golf Cub
Audubon Signature Resource Advisory Committee. Gusmano leads SWS in their efforts to give
back to the communities in which we do business.

Mr. Gusmano has been involved in all aspects of the permitting, acquisition, building,
and operating of SWS’s 11 Solid Waste management facilities, 5 processing centers, and 3
transfer stations. His background and years of leadership experience will play a vital rose in daily
- operations of the site. He will play a continuing role in coordinating the facilities operations,
including the short term and long term disposal services contracts, the logistical management and
disposal of waste from the waste processing facilities will be reported to him on a daily basis
including the waste facilities sale of its commodities and recycled products to vendors it the
market place. As Chief Operating Officer, he is responsible for the long term planning and daily
operations of SWS, Sun Disposal, Sun Recycling and All Star Toilets. Gusmano has completed
FLSI Certification in the Flippen Leadership Series. It is anticipated that 25% percent of his time
will be committed to providing disposal services.

4. - John Casagrande - Vice President of Business Development and
Responsible for Recyclables Processing (Narrative Resume, Background, and Experience)

The addition of Mr, Casagrande to the Sun Bergeron team ensures that it has more than 5
years experience in providing Recyclables Processing services in similar-sized or larger
communities.

John brings over 30 years of proven experience in the solid waste and recycling industry
to Southern Waste Systems and its affiliate companies, Sun Recycling, Sun Disposal and All
Star. As part of the Executive team he is instrumental in the strategic planning and operation of
all companies. '

Before Joining the Southern Waste Systems Team, John spent 14 years with Waste
Management, Throughout his career with WM, he was placed in roles of increasing levels of
responsibility including District Manager and ultimately Market Area Vice President for the
South Florida Market.

From 1998 to 2008 John was directly responsible for the strategic planning and complete
operational execution of the Reuters Material Recovery Facility. This included the successful bid
and award of the Miami Dade County processing agreement which delivered over 60,000 tons
annually of single stream material the MRF. He also orchestrated the acquisition and
management of the BFI MRF in Davie which was being used to process the ILA tons prior to
being relocated to Pembroke Pines. In 2008 John and his team renegotiated the ILA extension to
process the Broward county tons currently in place today.

5. Brad Kaine — Director of Municipal Support Program Services
-(Narrative Resume, Background, and Experience)

Brad Kaine comes to Sun Bergeron with a 13 year background in municipal government
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and most recently as the Public Works and Emergency Management Director for the City of
Weston for 6.5 years. By way of background he is a graduate of Florida Atlantic University's
Bachelor and Masters Program in Public Administration.

He brings strong leadership skills to the team as the former Technical Advisory Chair of
the Broward County Resource Recovert Board for Solid Waste Disposal for 6 years and The
Chair of the South Florida Amercian Public Works Association for 2 years. He continues in his

- 10th Year on the Board of Directors of APWA as a representative of Sun Bergeron.

As a public works administrator he oversaw an extensive recycling and HHW dropoff
program in the City of Deerfield Beach from 1999-2003. This was a full and comprehensive
program that allowed residents to drop off material at city facilities and help make the City of
Deerfield Beach the number one recycling municipality in Broward County. Under Mr Kaine's
leadership the City of Deerfield was very proactive in participating in County programs to
achieve high recycling rates and be as pro active as possible with businesses in the city.

As Public Works Director in Weston Mr Kaine was responsible for overseing a staff of
20 and numerous contractors as well as being responsible for the city's emergency management
functions. Mr Kaine oversaw the cleaning up of and recovery from hurricane wilma which
involved dealing with white goods and HHW products as well. In additon, the Clty would host a
HHW/EWaste every year that would allow the residents to drop off all HHW and Ewaste
materials at a designated city facility which staff was provided to assist with.

Also as Chair of The TAC for the Resource Recovery Board for the Solid Waste District
he was very involved in all county programs relating to HHW and EWaste and Bulk/Yard Waste
Drop off. He helped initiate and expand services to the partner city residents for these programs.

6. Philip T. Medico — Director of Government Affairs (Narrative
Resume, Background, and Experience) :

Philip T. Medico Jr. has over 30 years of professional experience in environmental
regulating and land use permitting. Mr. Medico received his Bachelor of Business
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Administration from the University of Miami and thereafter his Juris Doctor from Howard
University School of Law in 1980. He practiced environmental law and litigation in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Mr. Medico has extensive experience with municipal
governmental entities, numerous landfill operations and transfer facility operators of Garbage,
municipal solid waste, and Construction and Demolition debris material recovery facilities.

In addition, Mr. Medico has established an effective presence before state regulatory
agencies and regional offices of USEPA, focusing on environmental licensing under specialized
environmental statutes and their state counterparts. Mr. Medico advises the company on cost
effective strategies to accelerate environmental licensing in the compliance process. Prior to
joining SWS, Mr. Medico served as Chief Counsel for the West Side Landfill Authority and for
the Lower Lackawanna Valley Sanitary Authority, Mr. Medico also acted as a team leader in the
coordinating the collection, transportation and processing burricane debris during hurricane
seasons 2005-2005 and 2005-2006. Mr. Medico has services Broward, Dade and Palm Beach
- Counties in post disaster recovery services since 1992 in the state of Florida and Mississippi
subsequent to Hurricane Katrina, He serves as a frequent lecturer on a wide variety of
environmental topics on licensing, processing and permiiting of solid waste management
facilities and C&D recycling.

Mr. Medico served as Director of Governmental Affairs for USA Waste Services, the
company that acquired Waste Management. Mr. Medico was responsible for coordinating and
supervising large municipal contracts in Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties which
included hauling, operations, landfills and waste transfer stations. His responsibilities included
advising the company on cost effective strategies to accelerate environmental licensing and
permitting facilities that operated transfer stations that transshipped Garbage, municipal solid
waste, to the J.E.D. landfill in Okeechobee, Florida.

Thereafter Mr. Medico was employed by Delta Waste and Recycling Services that
developed, planned and permitted multiple construction and demolition debris processing
facilities that operated in Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties. These facilities are presently
being operated by Waste Management in South Florida and more specifically the waste
processing facility located at 1951 Powerline Road in Pompano Beach, Florida.

Eleven years ago Mr. Medico joined the team of Sun Recycling and coordinated the legal
and technical oversight and submission for all of its transfer stations and processing facilities,
These permits where obtained through the Broward County Environmental Protection and
Growth Management Department. In addition, all the Palm Beach County Facilities were
obtained through the State Department of Environmental Protection, Department of Health, and
the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County. These facilities on a daily basis receive,
process and dispose of Garbage and other Solid Waste at C&D, Class I, and Class III Facilities.

Mr. Medico ‘s principal responsibilities are overseeing site selection, zoning, permitting,
designing and building, and operations of the solid waste management facilitics in conjunction
with a team of legal engineering experts to acquire, construct, and operate the Solid Waste
facilities. Mr. Medico will be the designated leader for all of the Sun/Bergeron proposal work in
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conjunction with Anthony Lomangino, Ron Bergeron, Charlie Gusmano, Lonnie Bergeron, and
the SCS Engineers. '

Mr. Medico will be coordinating all of the permitting submission requirements to the
Department of Environmental Projection the Broward County Environmental Protection and
growth management department, which is the agency that is delegated by Florida DEP to review
the solid waste facility permits and all conditions relating thereto. In addition to Mr. Medico will
assist in the negations in short term and long term contracts with Class I landfill facilities and
waste to energy facilities, and it is anticipated that 75% of his time will be devoted to the
disposal services under this procurement.

7. Paul Valenti — Facilities and Operations Manager (Narrative Resume,
Background, and Experience) '

As Facilities and Operations Manager for Sun Recycling, Paul Valenti brings over 29
years of experience in the Solid Waste industry, including the processing and disposal of
Garbage, to his position at Southern Waste Systems and Sun Recycling, which he has held for 11
years. The combination of his hands-on operational experience and dedication to serving
customers has been the foundation for his success in the industry.

Throughout his extensive career, his duties and responsibilities have included municipal
contract management, hanling operations management and strategic planning and operations of
Material Recovery Facilities. He has served in every aspect of managing a hauling and recycling
company. Paul is a native of Queens, New York and began his career there. He has held
positions with both publicly held and privately held companies, including Allied Recycling a
fore-runner of Sun Recycling. Beyond his experience with Allied, Paul served as Operations
Manager for Waste Management in Long Island. He has managed multiple sites and has
experience in managing the transportation and disposal of special wastes, including contaminated
soils. : :

Paul has a stellar reputation in the Construction and Demolition Recycling industry and is
looked upon for consult throughout the industry. Paul was recognized by his peers in 2010 by
winning the Sun Recycling Leadership Award. He and his wife Rebecca are residents of
Wellington, Florida and he enjoys spending his free time with his family and working on antique
cars.

In his position with Sun/Bergeron he will be is responsible for developing and
implementing the operations plan at the waste processing facilities. He is responsible for site
operations along with Research and Development of recycling processes and facility planning
and design. Through these efforts, Sun has achieved an industry leading 92% recycling rate for
C&D, Yard Trash, and Bulk. In addition, he and Mr. Bermudez will coordinate the transporting
the municipal solid waste, residual solid waste and any and all of the recycled materials. It is
anticipated that he will devote 75% of his time to the provision of disposal services.
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8. Frank Bermudez - Environmental Permitting, Compliance, and
Safety (Narrative Resume, Background, and Experience)

Frank Bermudez brings a wealth of experience to Southern Waste Systems and its
affiliate companies. After a stellar and honored career both as a decorated Vietnam veteran and
then as a police officer, Frank has excelled in the waste industry for the past 15 years. A native
of Brooklyn, New York Frank served the citizens of New York for 22 years,

Over the years, he gained experience working part time with various companies in the
Construction and Demolition industry and after retiring from law enforcement began a second
career with Waste Management of South Florida ag an Operations Manager for a Material
Recovery site. Through a series of acquisitions and changes in ownership, he was also employed
by Delta Recycling and then BFI. During that tenure he was also:responsible for the management
of two Construction and Demolition landfills.

His hands on experience and knowledge of the day to day management of Material
Recovery Facilities launched him into a successful management career with Southern Waste
Systems and Sun Recycling whom he joined in the spring of 2000. Advancing from a site
Operation manager with Sun Recycling, Frank currently serves as the Infernal Compliance and
Safety Officer. ‘ '

His area of expertise includes permitting, licensing and safety regulatiohs of Material
Recovery facilities. He is responsible for all OSHA oversight and training in addition to training
for all site spotters, supervisors and managers.

Frank is a licensed helicopter pilot and serves the company in this capacity for land

development, surveying and tracking of property and equipment along with emergency related
services during natural disasters such as hurricanes.
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It is anticipated that Mr. Bermudez will devote 75% of his time to disposal services to be
provided under this procurement.

9, Anthony Correnti — Chief Financial Officer

As Chief Financial Officer, Tony brings over thirty years of industry experience to
Southern Waste Systems and its affiliate companies, Sun Recycling, Sun Disposal and All Star.

Tony’s waste industry career began in 198las a Staff Accountant with Waste
Management in Pompano Beach. Within one year, he was promoted to Controller, Over a 27

year period with WM, he was placed in roles of increasing levels of responsibility including

sweeping, Market Area Controller and Vice President. In 1999, Tony was promoted to Director
of Financial Control and Analysis at Waste Management. He served ten years with responsibility
for all financial matters in South Florida. He directed 11 Accountants and 40 support staff
overseeing 26 operating sites and 1,922 employees. Tony received two of Waste Management’s
highest awards for shareholder value and customer service and national recognition with best
practice awarded by WM Board of Directors. '

Tony also worked for BFI, Waste Industries and Republic Services in various financial
capacities including Assistant to Area Controller, Controller over Landfill Operations and
Business Unit Controller.

A graduate of Bemard Baruch College, Tony is an active member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a Florida Certified Public Accountant. As part of
the Executive team, he is instramental in the strategic planning and operation of all companies
with a focus on the financial operations and analysis,

Tony and his wife, Carol have been South Florida residents since 1979, Carol is a third
grade teacher in the Broward County School system. Their three children are graduates from
University of Florida and University of Central Florida. Tony was an active member in the
community as coach of basketball, soccer, softball and baseball programs including traveling
teams. He now spends his free time attending theatre/concerts and reading.
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10.  Ronald M. Bergeron, Sr. — Managing Member (Narrative Resume,
Background, and Experience)

Ronald M. Bergeron, Sr. is a sixth generation Floridian who in 1963 to started Bergeron
Land Development, Inc. with a little more than $200 and a used tractor and is considered to be
one of Florida’s most successful road builders. Today, with his sons, JR and Lonnie, he is the
Chief Executive Officer for more 40 companies with over 1000 employees. His vast 48 years of
experience in the fields of heavy construction, mining, site development, emergency services,
and real estate development are second to none.

He has been a tireless advocate for the preservation and restoration of the Florida
Everglades and has rolled up his sleeves to protect its fragile ecosystems. In 2006, Governor
Charlie Crist acknowledged Bergeron’s passion and dedication with an appointment to the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission. In addition, Bergeron is involved with the
Everglades Coordinating Council, an umbrella organization for conservation and sportsmen’s
groups in South Florida; the Old Davie Schoo! Historical Museum, Professional Rodeo Cowboys
Association, Boys & Girls Clubs of Broward County, Broward Partnership for the Homeless and
the Nova Entrepreneur Program.
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11.  Lonnie Bergeron (Narrative Resume, Background, and Experience)

Lonnie Bergeron has extensive background in land development, construction, and
disaster recovery services, including, including the supervising of the TDSR and processing of
more than 2 million cubic yards of hurricane debris after Hurricane Wilma in 2005. Strong
managerial skills with the ability to manage multiple teams in many different locations
performing a wide variety of different tasks. Current Certified General Contractor, Certified
Underground Utility and Excavation Contractor, and Licensed Broward County General
Engineered Builder; and Licensed Qualifier for Bergeron Land Development and Bergeron
Emergency Services; Vice President and Construction Manager for Bergeron Properties &
Investment Corp. and Kendall Properties and Investment.

12.  Ronald (JR) M. Bergeron, Jr. (Narrative Resume, Background, and
Experience)

JR Bergeron has over 20 years of heavy construction, design build, site development, and
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emergency services experience, including the processing more than 2 million cubic yards of
hurricane debris after Hurricane Wilma in 2005. Most recently JR and his team completed a
including a large scale recycling project for Broward County Waste & Recycling Services. The
project consisted of processing over 1.8 million cubic yards of hurricane debris, including
vegetative, hazardous and non-hazardous materials that had been stockpiled for more than five
years. As Vice-president of Bergeron Land Development, Inc. and Owner/Founder of Bergeron
Emergency Services, Inc. he coordinates bidding, contract negotiations, management and control
of all projects from airports, FDOT projects, municipal disaster recovery contracts, SFWMD
projects and U.S. Ammy Corp of Engineers projects valued at more than $1 billion dollars. His
breadth of work spans across various County agencies throughout South and Central Florida,
especially Broward County.

13.  Brian Thomason (Narrative Resume, Background, and Experience)

Mr. Thomason is a senior manager who has led numerous disaster relief operations with
direct responsibility for resolution of program issues associated with all categories of the FEMA
Public Assistance Program. Drawing from past experiences as an Emergency Manager, he has
assisted local units of government with recovery efforts stemming from natural disasters, and is
experienced in managing a full range of recovery projects from conception to completion. He
negotiates with federal and state funding arms on behalf of local and state governments affected
by natural and man-made disasters.

Mr. Thomason’s project experience has ranged from $1M projects to simultaneous
projects reaching over $300M in value. By participating in over 100 large-scale debris
management projects as a result of over 25 major disaster declarations, Brian has engaged in
every facet of the disaster debris management process from field supervision to Incident
Manager. In 2001, Brian was the Senior Project Manager for the Arkansas Department of
 Highways and Transportation (ADHT) Ice Storm Project. The State of Arkansas was impacted
by back-to-back ice storms that crippled the State and generated millions of cubic yards of
vegetative debris. The project encompassed 4 ADHT Districts covering over 12,000 miles of
highway. The projected yielded over 5 million cubic yards of vegetative debris. At peak, over
300 loading crews with over 1,500 hauling units were hauling over 100,000+ cubic yards per
day. The pickup, hauling, reduction and disposal operations were completed in 110 days from
Notice to Proceed. This was approximately two months ahead of the projected completion date
scheduled. :

As further evidence of his management capabilities, Brian managed operations for 23
separate Florida applicants ranging from Coconut Creek south to Key West during the 2005
Hurricane season and 43 separate Florida applicants ranging from Jacksonville south to Key
West and west to Punta Gorda during the 2004 Hurricane season. Prior to working for BES, he
served as Cumberland County, N.C. Emergency Management Agency, Deputy Director with
duties that included coordination of Emergency Management Operations countywide. As a
firefighter, Mr. Thomason also served as a Hazardous Materials Response Specialist and was
assigned to the NC Hazardous Materials Regional Response Team (RRT#3) and was requested
on several occasions to provide Hazardous Materials Technician Training and Instruction,

BP-9
FTLDOCS 6214228 1



Sun-Bergeron, JV

Additional Materials .

City of Deerfield Beach, ITB #2012-13/22
Page 15 0f 19

Confined Space Training and Trench Rescue Training through the NC Department of Insurance
in various locations throughout the state.

Other operations that Mr. Thomason has participated in are represented below:
DISASTER RECOVERY EXPERIENCE

2010 Broward County, Solid Waste and Recycling Division -Processing and disposal of
all vegetative and non-vegetative material to landfili and recycling locations.

2010 BP Oil Spill- Oversaw daily logistical operations for marine vessel laydown yards
including: boom deployment, decontamination of vessels and skimmer deployment. Monitored
all incoming and outgoing resources for the Deepwater Horizon project.

2009 Ice Storm- Cleanup in Ballard and Hart Counties for the State of Kentucky
Transportation Cabinet

2008 Hurricane Ike- Cleanup in the communities of Baytown, El Lago, Galveston,
Nassau Bay, Piney Point Village and Taylor Lake Village, Texas

2007 Tornado- Recovery in the Town of Lady Lake, Florida

2006 Red Tide- Cleanup in the Town of Long Boat Key and other miscellaneous west
coast Florida communities

2005 Hurricanes Dennis, Katrina, Rita and Wilma- Debris cleanup and management
following for applicants located in 23 Florida communities

2004 Hurricanes/Tropical Storms: Charley, Frances, Ivan, Jeanne- Debris cleanup for
applicants in 43 Florida communities

2003 Hurricane Isabel- Cleanup for 9 of 13 jurisdictions who are members of the Central
Virginia Waste Management Authority

2003 Emergency Road Repairs - Levy County

2002 Public Utilities Sewer Breach -Venice, FL

2002 Ice Storm Cleanup -Independence, Mo.

2002 Hurricane Lili- Cleanup in the communities of Crowley and Carencro, Louisiana

2001 Ice Storms -Response for the Arkansas State Highway and Transportation
Department

2001 Red Tide Cleanup- Town of Long Boat Key, miscellaneous west Florida cities

BP-9
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2000 Flood Cleanup- City of Sweetwater, FL
1999 Tornadoes- in Del City, OK; Vienna, GA; USDA NRCS, OK;

1999 Train Derailment/Fighter Plane- Brandon CSX Train derailment; Patrick AFB F-16
recovery

1999 Hurricane Floyd- 20 Separate communities stretching from Key West, FL;
Charleston, SC; Chatham County, GA to the NC/Virginia State Borders in Murfreesboro, NC.

1998 Tomadoes- DeKalb, Gwinnett, Lincolnton Counties, GA; Osceola County, Florida
1998 Beach Restoration- North Top Sail Beach, NC
1998 Fires- Port Orange, FL

1996 Beach Restoration- Notth Top Sail Beach, NC |
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References

Bidder must provide at least three (3) references of customers to which it has provided services
similar to those sought by the City. References shall inciude name, title, telephone number, e-
mail address, mailing address, and a description of the services provided. The service description
should include the dates services were provided, the types of materials handled, annual tonnage
disposed, and annual cost of services, If available, such references should be representatives of

Florida jurisdictions to which the Bidder is currently providing, or has provided services within

the last five (5) years

Government Name: City of Deerfield Beach, Population 76,389 (2011)

Contact Name and Title: Chad Grecsek, Director of Public Works & Environmental Servzces
Contact Phone: 954.480. 4390 Contact E-Mail: cgrecsek@deerfield-beach.com

Mailing Address: 401 SW 4™ Street, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441

Dates of Service; 2005 present

Arnmual Tonnage and Cost: 500,000

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Disposal and Recycling of C&D, Bulk, Yard,
and other Class III Solid Waste.

Name: City of Boynton Beach, Population 68,996 (2011)

Contact Name and Title: Christine Roberts, Assistant Director of Public Works

Contact Phone: 561.742.6200; Contact E-Mail: robertsc@bbfl.us

Mailing Address: 222 NE 9% Avenne, Boynton Beach, FL 33433

Dates of Service: 2008— present

Annual Tonnage and Cost: 187,500

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Disposal and Recycimg of C&D, Bulk, Yard,
and other Class III Solid Waste.

Name: City of Oakland Park, Population 42,126 (2011)

Contact Name and Title: Kenneth L. Resor, Director of Public Works

Contact Phone: 954.630.4414; Contact E-Mail: kennethr@oaklandparkfi.gov

Mailing Address: 3801 NE 5 Avenue, Oakland Park, FL 33334

Dates of Service: 2008— present

Annual Tonnage and Cost: 5,000

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Disposal and Recycling of C&D, Bulk, Yard,
and other Class HI Solid Waste.

Name: City of Hallandale Beach, Population 37,800 (2011)
Contact Name and Title: John Chidsey, Assistant Director of Public Works

Contact Phone: 954.457.3045; Contact E-Mail: Jchidsev@hallandalebeachfl.gov
Mailing Address: 630 NW 2"d Street, Hallandale Beach, FL 33009

Dates of Service: 2009 — present
Annual Tonnage and Cost: 187,500

BP-20
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Materials Handled and Description of Services: Dlsposai and Recycling of C&D, Bulk, Yard,
and other Class III Solid Waste.

Name: City of Pembroke Pines

Contact Name and Title: Charles F Dodge, City Manager

Contact Phone: 954.954.431.4884; Contact E-Mail: cdodge@ppines.com

Mailing Address: 10100 Pines Blvd., Pembroke Pines, FL 33026

Dates of Service: 2007 — 2012

Annual Tonnage and Cost: 5,612

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Processing and Recycling of Program
Recyclables

Name: Broward County

Contact Name and Title: Peter Foye, Director Recycling and Contract Administration Division
Contact Phone: 954.577.2395; Contact E-Mail: pfove@broward.org

Mailing Address: 1 North University Blvd., Plantation, FL. 33324

Dates of Service: 2003 - 2012

Annual Tonnage and Cost: 71,000 and $4,118,000+

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Processing and Recycling of Program
Recyclables

Name: Miami-Dade County

Contact Name and Title: Paul J. Mauriello, Deputy Director of Operations

Comntact Phone: 305.514.6623; Contact E-Mail: mauriel@miami-dade.gov

Mailing Address: 2525 NW 62™ Street, 5 Floor, Miami, FL 33147

Dates of Service: 2008 — 2012 '

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Processing and Recycling of Program
Recyclables

Name: Broward County Drop Off Locations in Pompano, Hallandale, and Davie (for Sun
Bergeron Key Personnel John Casagrande while with Waste Management)

Contact Name and Title: Peter Foye, Director Recycling and Contract Administration Division
Contact Phone: 954.577.2395; Contact E-Mail: pfove@broward.org

Mailing Address: 1 North University Blvd., Plantation, FL 33324

Dates of Service: 2001 — 2012

Annual Tonnage and Cost: Not Known

Materials Handled and Desctiption of Services: HHW Drop Off

Name: City of Deerfield Beach (for Sun Bergeron Key Personnel Braid Kaine while with City)
Contact Name and Title: Chad Grecsek, Director of Public Works & Environmental Services
Contact Phone: 954.480.4390; Contact E-Mail: cgrecsek@deerfield-beach.com

Mailing Address: 401 SW 4" Street, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441

Dates of Service: 1994-2003

BP-20
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Annval Tonnage and Cost: Not Known
Materials Handled and Description of Services: Mr. Brad Kaine, Sun Begeron, Key Personnel,
was responsible for the City’s Drop Off Recycling Center that included receipt of all HHW

Name: City of Weston (for Sun Bergeron Xey Personnel Braid Kaine with City)
Contact Name and Title: Karl C. Thompson, P.E., Director of Public Works
Contact Phone: 954.385.2600; Contact E-Mail: kthompson@westonfl.org
Mailing Address: 2599 South Post Road, Weston, Florida 33327

Dates of Service: 2005-2011

Annual Tonnage and Cost: Not Known

Materials Handled and Description of Services: Mr. Brad Kaine, Sun Begeron, Key Personnel,

was responsible for the City’s HHW/E-Waste collection day for residents

BP-20
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INSURANCE OFFICE OF AMERICA

May 21, 2013
RE: Sun Bergeron Solid Waste Services Joint Venture

To Whom [t May Concern,

This letter is to attest and verify that Sun Bergeron Solid Waste Services Joint
Venture is insurable — specifically with respect to the Insurance terms and
coverages that are set forth in Sections 2.14 and 3.8 of the Invitation to Bid
(#2012-13/22) by and between Sun-Bergeron Solid Waste Services Joint
Venture, and the City of Deerfield Beach, Florida for Solid Waste Disposal
Services dated May 7, 2013 (“ITB"). All of the lines of coverages set forth in
Sections 2.14 and 3.8 of the ITB will be effective an in full force and in effect
prior to Sun-Bergeron's commencement of performance under the Agreement,
but in no event later than July 1, 2013.

Once the Notice of award has been feceived, a Certificate of insurance shall be
submitted to the City of Deerfied Beach within fifteen (15) days of the
aforementioned award

On behalf of our client, we look forward to working with the City of Deerfield
Beach.

Sincerely,

-

Charles P.{:omazian, CPCU, ARM, AIS, AAl, ACI
Vice President of Risk Alternatives

1855 W. State Road 434 * Longwood, FL 32750
Phone: 407-998-4259 * Fax: 407-788-7933 * Toll Free Phone: 1-R00-243-6899 * Fax 1-800-788-2324
www.inause.com .
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Prepared By:

Application Received:

Date of Issne:

Renéwal App. Due:

Expiration Date:

EnvironmentaliProtection and-Growthy Managemen! Department
POLLUTION PREVENTION, REM EDIATION AND-AIR QUALITY DIVISION
Onre-N. Universily Diive, Suite 102, Pltgion, F. 33324

B544618:1280 <FAX BR4:570-1304

which are recovered ﬁ-om & mtxec‘l sehd waste tream thrqugh a “L!2 inch minus™ scresn, other than
land claanng debri&'~ ya rct waste; or clwn debn& Class : _I Waaste J:s m\f@d, pracassed, and sta:ed i

C&D aud C!as:, BT wast& streéms shall be: stomd mmde th& but.tdm;, and d:sposed cf ata iimnsed
Class I or Class Tl 'waste disposal facility.

Glenn Mqlmsfrom

06!39. 014
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SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT LICENSE

GENERAL CONDITIONS -

0

@

@)

4

()
®)

@

8

©

(10)

(11)

the Licensee, shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of THE AGENCY's rights hersunder.

The terms, conditions, requirsments, limitations and restrictions set forth herein are accepted by the Licensee :
and must be completed by the Licensee and are enforcaable by The Environmental Protection and Growth —
Management Department (THE AGENCY) pursuant to this chapter. THE AGENCY will review this license

periodically and may revoke or suspend the license, and initiate administrative and/or judicial action for any

violation of the conditions by the Licensee, its agents, employees, servants or representatives.

The license is valid only for the specific uses set forth In the license application and any deviation from the
approved uses may constitute grounds for revocation, suspension, and/or enforcement action by THE .
AGENCY. :

In the event the Licensas is temporarily unable to comply with any of the conditions of the license or with the
Code, the Licensee shall notify THE AGENCY within eight (8) hours or as stated in the spacific section of the
Code. Within three {3) working days of the event, the Licensee shall submit a writlen report to THE AGENCY
that describes the incident, its cause, the measures being taken io correct the problem and prevent its
repceurranca, the owner's intention regarding the repair, replacement and reconstruction of destroyed facilities
and a schedule of events leading toward operating within the license condition.

The issuance of this license does not convey any vested rights or exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any
injury to the public or private property or any invasion of personal rights, or any violation of federal, state or loca
laws or regulations. '

This license must be available for inspection on the Licensee's premises during the entire fifs of the licenss.

By accepiing this license, the Licensee understands and agrees that ali records, notes, monitoring data and _
other information relating to the construction or operation of this licensed facility or activity, that are submitted -
to the County, may be used by the County as evidence in any enforcement proceeding arising under the Code,

except where such use is prohibited by section 403,111, Florida Statutes.

The Licensee agrees to comply and shalt comply with all provisions of the most curment version of the Code.

Any new owner or operator of a licensed facility shall apply by letter for a transfer of license within thirty (30)
days after sale or lega! transfer. The fransferor shall remain liable for performance in accordance with the
ficanse until the transferee applies for and is granted a transfer of license. The transferee shall be liable for any
violation of the Code that results from the transferee’s activitles. The transferee shall comply with the
fransferor’s original license conditions when the transfaree has falled to obtain its own license.

The Licenses, by acceptance of this license, specifically agrees to allow access and shall allow access to the
licensed source, activity or facility at ime to AGENCY personnel for the purposes of Inspection and testing to -
determine compliance with this license and the Code.

This license does not constitute a waiver or approval of any other license, approval, or regulatory requirement
by this or any other govemmental agency that may be required.

Enforcement of the terms and provisions of this license shall be at the reasonable discretion of THE AGENGY,
and any forbearance on behalf of THE AGENCY to exercise its rights hereunder in the event of any breach by
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APPLICANT: Mr. Charles Gusmano, President
FACILITY NAME: Sun Recycling, LLC #2

EPGMD License Number: SW-WP00008-09
DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010-50

SPECTFIC CONDITIONS:

L

10.

.

Only construction and demolition debris (C & D), yard trash, Class BI waste, clean debris, and recovered
materials as defined in Section 62-701 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Chapter 27-214 of
the Broward County Code shall be received at this site. C & D is processed into the following recyclable
materials: paper, foam, glass, fiberglass, cardboard, aluminum, ferrous and non-ferrous metals, wood, plastlc
maulch, clean debris, 2nd RSM.

The licensee shail not accept or process any putrescible wastes or material suspected of being asbestos,
hazardous or biomedical wastes. Should any asbestos, hazardous and/or biomedical wastes be delivered at
the facility, the licensee shall immediately notify the PPRAQD, and shall arrange for the wastes to be retumed
to the generator or disposed of in a mangner approved by the PPRAQD.

The licensee shall ensure all personinel on-site are properly trained to operate the facility with emphasis on
proper identification and proper management of prohibited materials, safety, health, environmental controls,
and emergency procedures.

An operator shall be on duty whenever the facility is operating. At least one spotter shall be on duty at all
times that waste is received at the site to inspect the incoming waste. Operators and spotters shall be trained
in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C.

Each incoming load shall be inspected before being allowed to be deposited at the facility. Any Joads
containing prohibited material shall be rejected.

Prohibited material which inadvertently enters the Facility shall be separated from the incoming waste stream
within 48 hours from receipt on site and shall be stored in containers and disposed of at a licensed disposal
facility pursuant to Section 62-701, F.A.C. This matenal shall be removed from the site and properly
disposed within 48 hours from receipt of the material.

All processing of incoming C&D into recyclable materials must be completed within seven (7) working days
of receipt on site, except for yard trash and clean untreated wood.

The unloading, processing and sorting of all solid waste shall be conducted within separate designated areas
on the concrete pad and/or inside the bermed area of the building as provided in the license application. No
unloading, processing, sorting, or storage of Class [IT waste (bulky waste) shall take place outside the

building.

The licensee shall utilize and maintain the concrete slab, stee! building, walls, push walls, Jeachate control
curbs, and the concrete floor indicated in the license application and site plan to contain run-off, provide a
physical separation between Class IlI waste (bulky waste) and other matesjal, and prevent these wastes from
being co-mingled.

Containers utilized for the removal of Class IH waste {bulky waste) from the facility may be located outside
of the building during the loading process. They shall be immediately removed when filled.

All recyciable materials, except clean debris, yard trash, untreated and unpainted wood, and recovered
screened material (RSM) shall be stored under cover, or kept in storage containers, or kept on the concrete
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12,

13.

14.

15,

16.
17.

18.

19.

20,

21

EPGMD License Nuinber: SW-WP00008-09
DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010-80

slab. These materials shail be removed from the site when a container load is generated. In no case shall these
materials remain on site longer than thirty (30) calendar days from receipt on site. Within thirty (30) days of
generation, RSM shall be removed from the site and properly disposed of at an approved location.

Non-recyclable solid waste separated from the incoming C&D and Class 11l waste stream shal! be stored in
containers and disposed of at a licensed Class 1 or Class BI disposal facility. This material shail be removed
from the site within seven {7) operational days after receipt on site.

Within 90 calendar days of receipt, all yard trash and untreated and unpainted wood shall be processed and

- removed from the site,

Pressure treated and/or painted wood that is received shall not be processed into wood chips with the clean
wood. Pressure treatex and/or painted wood shall be extracted from the incoming material siream, placed into
a designated container, and properly disposed at a licensed facility pursuant to Rule 62-701, F.A.C.

C & D, yard trash, wood, or mulch and wood chip piles shall not exceed the following dimensions: width -
fifty (50) fect, area - 10,000 square fest, height - fifteen (15) feet, as detailed in the Interim Dust Control
Measures dated May 24, 2005.

A space shall be provided berween all piles to allow access to vehicles, including fire fighting equipment.

At no time shall the total accumulation of incoming material and non-recyclable solid waste exceed 11,961.7
cubic yards, the approved volume detailed in the license application and approved closure cost estimate.

_ Odors, dust, vectors, and noise shall be strictly controlled at all times. 1f any of the above are determined to

be a problem, the licensee shall promptly take any and all actions necessary to correct the situation. The
PPRAQD noise regulations in Article VII of the Code shall be complied with at all fimes.

The licensee shall utilize and maintaio dust control screens on the perimeter walls along the castem, northern,
and western boundary of the site as described in the Revised Dust Control Plan of August 17, 2004, as.
amended by the Interim Dust Control Measures dated May 24, 2005, and revisions dated June 2007, October
2007, and December 2009. These consist of 12 feet high mesh screens on top of the 8 feet high perimeter
walls on the eastern and western sides of the facility and a 30 feet high mesh screen along the northern
perimeter of the site.

The licensee shall utilize and maintain the sprinkler misting system(s} along the eastern, northern and western
perimeter of the site to control dust. This system consists of: seven {7) sprinklers along the eastern wall, five
(5) mister sprinklers along the northern wall, and ten (10) sprinklers along the western wall as described in
the Revised Dust Control Plan of August 17, 2004, as amended by the Interim Dust Control Measures dated
May 24, 2003, and revisions dated June 2007, October 2007, and December 2009,

The licensee shall utilize operational procedures that minimize dust from loading material into the
process/picking line, The water sprinkler/misting system consisting of: three (3) automatic sprinklers/misters
on the east side of the RSM bunkers, three (3) automatic sprinklers/misters on the west side of the RSM
bunkers, one (1) sprinkler at the bottom of the incline conveyor feeding the picking line, three (3) Sprinklers
on the roof of the building covering the residual waste bunkers, as well as dust curtains at the shaker screen
and covering the trommel screen on the picking line shall also be utilized and maintained to control dust as
described in the Revised Dust Contvol Plan of August 17, 2004, as amended by the Interioa Dust Control
Measures dated May 24, 2005, and revisions dated June 2007, October 2007, and December 2009,
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22

23,

24.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The licensee shall utilize and maintain a water truck, hydraulic sweeper, and water valves and hoses
strategically throughout the site to address dust at the entrance/exit road(s), internal roadway system, loading
and unloading area(s), processing area(s), picking line, and elsewhere as site operations dictate, as detailed in
the Revised Dust Control Plan of August 17, 2004, as amnended by the Interim Dust Control Measures dated
May 24, 2005, and revisions dated June 2007, October 2007, and December 2009.

The licensee shall activate all facility sprinklers every day before operations begin and prior o accepting,
unloading, loading or processing any material. An automatic timer system shall be utilized to control
sprinklers along the north dust screen for continuous operation during all howrs of facility operation. Workers
with hoses shail also be utilized to control specific dust sources during material processing, loading, and
unloading activities at the facility as detailed in the Reviged Dust Control Plan of August 17, 2004, as
amended by the Interim Dust Control Measures dated May 24, 20085, and revisions dated June 2007, October
2007, and December 2009. _

‘The licensee shall redirect traffic at the facility as practicable to exit the site on the south onto NW 16™ Street
and cast onto NW 22™ Avenue to minimize traffic exiting on the north onto NW 17® Street. The gate at the
outbound lane to NW 17" Street shall be kept closed when not in use but an attendant shall be present to
open the gate on demand for traffic that requires this exit as detailed in the Interim Dust Contro] Measares
dated May 24, 20035, and revisions dated June 2007, October 2007, and December 2009.

During the operational hours of the facility the licensee shall monitor perimeter of the site, wind direction,
operation of dust contrel devices, and identify the operation(s) generating dust. In the event the dust cannot be
controlled the licensee shall cease the offending operation(s) until adequate dust control measures are
instituted and effectively preventing dust from leaving the property as detailed in the Revised Dust Control
Plan of August 17, 2004, as amended by the Interica Dust Control Measures dated May 24, 2008, and
revisions dated June 2007, October 2007, and December 2009,

The licensee shall maintain a record book at the site recording the date and time the monitoring takes place,
the specific operation(s) observed, the operating status of the dust contro] device(s), identifying dust
problems and corrective action taken, and date and time of compliance or operation shut down.

The licensee shall submit an Application for License Modification and obtain a License prior to expanding the
building to encapsulate the process area and adding additional property areas to the Sun Recycling facility.

The Jicensee shall wtilize and maintaia the concrete bin blocks and rolling retractable gate as indicated on the
revised site plan for the facility to maintain a physical sepacation of the Sun Recycling #2 facility operation
from the adjoining property (former Lutz property) located to the east, The licensee shall utilize and maintain
the existing west wall and fence of the Sun Recycling #2 facility as a physical separation of the operation
from the adjoining property {former Piney Branch Motors property) located to the west,

The adjoining property (former Lutz property) shall only be used for ingress and egress purposes and the
gcale located on the property shall be used for the weighing of trucks as stated in the November 9, 2007 letier
from Southern Waste Systems.

The adjoining properties (former Lutz and Piney Branch Motors properties) shall not be wtilized for any solid
waste activity. No solid waste receipt, unloading, loading, or processing activity shall take place on the
property until such time as an application for license to include the property is submitted to and approved by
the PPRAQD.
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31,

32,

The licensee shall comply with the terms of the Settlement Agreement that was approved by Broward Countyon
August 31, 2010. The licensee shall submit an Application for License Modification and obtain a license to
complete the proposed in-kind construction project described below involving the partial encapsulation of the Sun
Recycling, LL.C #2 facility in accordance with the Proposed Site Plan & Roof Shelter dated March 31, 2010 amd
the timeframe specified below.

In~kind Construction Project:

» The licensee agrees to partially encapsulate the Sun Recycling #2 facility located at 2281 NW 16® Street,
Pompane Beach, in accordance with the attached Proposed Site Plan & Roof Shelter dated March 31,
2010.

s Construction shall be completed within 18 moaths of approval of this agreement by Broward County.

s Anymodification to the Proposed Site Plan & Roof Shelter dated March 31, 2010 needs 16 be approved
by the Department. The licensee shall schedule 2 meeting with the Department to discuss any proposed
modification.

e The licensee shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, or approvals necessary to complete the
construction.

o If the livensee fails 10 complete construction of the Roof Shelter building within 18 months of approval
of this agreement by Broward County or in accordance with the Proposed Site Plan & Roof Shelter dated
March 31, 2010 or an approved modified plan, then Respondent agrees to pay $25,000 per month for
each month or portion of month that the project is late until the remaining balance of the monetary
penaity beld in abeyance is paid in full.

Upon completion of construction of the Roof Shelter building, the licensee shall submit certified as-built
plans from a registered Professional Engineer which shall specifically indicate that the construction was
completed in accordance with the Proposed Site Plan & Roof She!m dated March 31, 201 0 or an approved
modified plan.

*  Any extension to the timeframe needs to be approved by the Department or the Hearing Examiner and
will be based upon a demonstration of good faith efforts to complete the work and that any delays were
outside the control of the licensee,

» [fthe licensee fails to complete construction of the Roof Shelter building by the deadline or in accordance
with the Proposed Site Plan & Roof Shelter dated March 31, 2010 or ar approved modified plan, the
Department reserves the right to petition the Hearing Examiner for penalties that were held in abeyance.

®  Thelicensee agrees that this Agreement shall become part of Solid Waste Management License # SW-
WP00008-09.

The licensee acknowledges and agrees that failure to comply with this Agreement may result in the denial,
suspension or revocation of any Environmental Protection and Growth Management Department (Department)
license, permit or approval pending or held by the licensee, pursuant to the Code.

The site shall be secured and kept locked when not attended. Additional fencing and security measures shall
be provided as necessary to secure the site and prevent unanthorized dumping.
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33

34,

35.

36.

37.

The licensee shall permanently maintain sign(s}) in a conspicuous location clearly visible to the general public
indicating the name of the operating authority, contact person and telephone number in case of emergency,
hours of aperation, and list of prohibited materials. : -

The Licensee shall notify the PPRAQD in writing prior to any change of the on site operator at the facility.
This notification shall include at a minimum, the operator name, address, phone number, and contact person, —
as well as a description of the operation.

The Licensee shal! maintain compliance with the financial assurance requirements of Rule 62-701.718,
F.A.C,, by submitting all required updated supporting documentation in accordance with Rule 62-701.630,
F.A.C., and 40 CFR Part 264, Subpart H, 25 adopted by reference in Rule 62-701.630, F.A.C. All submittals
in response to this specific condition shall be sent to:

Florida Department of Environmental Protection N
Financial Coordinator - Solid Waste Section

2600 Biair Stone Road MS 4565

Tallahassee, Florida 32399.2400 ' o

The Licensee shall annually provide to the PPRAQD for approval an updated closure cost estimate, in
accordance with the requirements of Rule §2-701.630, F.A.C, The closure cost estimates shall be calculated
in accordance with rule 62-701.630, F.A.C., and 40 CFR Part 264, Subpan H, as adopted by reference in
Rule 62-701.630, F.A.C. All submittals in response to this specific condition shall be sent to:

Poitution Prevention, Remediation and Air Quality Division

ATTN: Waste Management Section _

One North University Drive, Suite 203 -
Plantation, Fl. 33324 i

The Licensee shall implement and maintain a ground water monitoring plan which meets the criteria set forth
in Rule 62-701.510 and Chapter 62-522, F.A.C. Detection wells shall be sampled and analyzed at least semi-
annually for the following parameters:

Field Parameters

pH Cadmium

Turbidity Chromium

Temperature Lead

Specific Conductivity Mercury

Dissolved Oxygen Total Dissolved Solids Ammonia —
Water elevations Iron Phenois

Colors and sheens Sodium Those Parameters listed in

(by observation) Arsenic EPA Methods 601 and 602
Backeround water quality shall be sampled and analyzed in accordance with the provisions of Rule 62-

701.510(6)(a), F.A.C. In addition, al! background and detection wells shall be sampled and analyzed at least
once prior to permit renewal for those parameters listed in Rule 62-701.510(8)(a), F.A.C. —

Page 7 of 11



APPLICANT: Mr. Charles Gusmano, President
FACILITY NAME: Sun Recycling, LLC #2

38.

39.

40.

EPGMD License Number: SW-WP00008-09
DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010-80

Electronic Reporting. The Licensee shall submit groundwater analytical results to PPRAQD at the address
specified above on a semi-anpual basis by Jupe 30 and December 30 of each year. Required water quality
monitoring reports and all ground water, surface water and leachate analytical results shall be submitted
electronically. Water quality monitoring reports shall be submitted in Adobe pdf format. The water quality
data Electronic Data Deliverable (EDD} shall be provided to the Department in an electronic format
consistent with requirements for importing the data into the Department's databases. Water guality
monitoring reports shall be signed and scaled by a Florida registered professional geologist or professional
engineer with experience in hydrogeological investigations and shall include the following:

Cover letter;

Summary of exceedances and recommendations;

Ground water contour maps;

Chain of custody forms; _

Water levels, water elevation table;

Ground Water Monitoring Report Certification, using the appropriate Department form;
Appropriate sampling information on Form FD 9000-24 (DEP-SOP-001/01); and,
Laboratory and Field EDDs and error logs, as applicable.

Ll o

All submittals in response to this specific condition shall be sent both to:

Envirommnental Protection and Growth Management Department
Pollution Prevention, Remediation and Air Quality Division

1 North University Drive, 2™ Floor

Plantation, F1. 33324

Andg to:
Florida Department of Environimental Protection
Solid Waste Section
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 4565
Taliahassee, Florida, 32399-2400

The Licensee shall submit groundwater analytical results to PPRAQD at the address specified aboveon a
semi-annual basis by June 30 and December 30 of each year. The groundwater analytical results should be
summarized in letter form and the laboratory reports and Chain of Custody forms should be included as
attachments. :

A record book shall be kept on site with the following information entered on a daily basis:

A, Quantity of solid waste received and processed (by type)in cubic yards); and

B, Quantity of recyclable material recovered (by type) (in cubic yards); and

C. Quantity of recyclable material marketed (by type) (in cubic yards); and

D. Quantity of pregsure treated and/or painted wood disposed (in cubic yards) and identify the disposal
location(s);

E. Quantity of solid waste disposed of (by type) (in cubic yards) and identify the disposal Jocation{s);

F. Quantity of RSM generated and disposed of (in cubic yards) and identify the disposal location(s).

Page 8 of 11



APPLICANT: Mr. Charles Gusmano, President EPGMD License Number: SW-WP00008-09
FACILITY NAME: Sun Recycling, LLC #2 DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010.50

41.

42.

This information shall be summarized eack month and submitted to the PPRAQD by the fifteenth (15%) day E
of each succeeding month at the address listed above. -

For RSM disposal, the monthly suramary shall include a copy of the corresponding ticket for each load which
shall show volume, address, date, type of use, truck name and company, copy of end-user rotification, copy —
of written acceptance of gotification, and copy of institutional control implemented (as required). ’

Use of RSM in résidmlia!, commercial, and industrial settings is aflowed under the following conditions:
A. The RSM may be used in a manner approved by the PPRAQD.

B. The land receiving the RSM is zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use by the appropriate
- local government.

C. Prior to the disposal of RSM, the licensee shall provide appropriate written notification to the property
owner of the site receiving the RSM. The notification, at a minimum, shall be on company letterhead and -
inclode the following language:

1) This material has been recovered from construction and demolition (C&D) debris. The Broward
County Environmental Protection and Growth Management Departzoent (EPGMD) has approved
this material, based on operator testing, as fill in residential, commercial, and industrial settings. Its
use has not been approved as fill in sizface water bodies, areas of exposed ground water, in wetlands,
or in borrow pit reclamation areas.

Sampling and analytical requirements for the reuse of recovered screen materials (RSM).

. A. Baseline testing:

Sun Recycling, LLC #2 previousty submitted the general testing requirements outlined in the
Guidance Manual. SCS Engineers conducted baseline sampling for RSM produced at the Sun
Recyeling, LLC #2 facility on May 14-27, 2002, following the genera| testing and analysis
requirements outlined in Appendices B and C, and prepared a Recovered Screen Material Baseline
Sampling Report which was submitted to EPGMD on September 12, 2002. Additional sampling
activities were conducted on January 6-12, 2003 and a Supplementa! Recovered Screen Material
Baseline Sampling Report was submitted to EPGMD on March 25, 2003, as part of the application
to modify their operating permit. As a result, the baseline testing is considered complete for the Sun
Recyeling, LLC #2 site.

B. Compliance testing:

1) At 8 frequency of every 1000 tons or every week, whichever is less frequent, an 8 hour
composite sample must be collected using methods in the SOP in Appendix B of the
Guidance Manual aud transported to the laboratory for analysis. At the laboratory, four
rendomly selected aliquots of the weekly composite sample raust be obtained and one of —
those aliquots must be digested for total arsenic using EPA Method 3050, If the arsenic )
concentration resulting from this analysis is greater than the soil cleanup goal for arsenic in —
residential seftings, then the remaining thre¢ aliquots must be analyzed for arsenic using an

Page9of 11



APPLICANT: Mr. Charles Gusmano, President EPGMD License Number: SW-WP0C008-09

FACILITY NAME: Sun

2)

3)

4

Recycling, LLC #2 DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010-80

appropriate laboratory method. The single arsenic concentration, if only one aliquot is
analyzed, or the geometric mean concentration for arsenic of all four atiquots, if all four
aliquots are analyzed, shall be considered the resulting arsenic concentration for the weekly
composite sarnple.

At a frequency of every 10,000 tons or every three months, whichever is less frequent, an 8
hour composite sample must be collected usicg methods in the SOP in Appendix B of the
Guidance Manual and transported to the laboratory for analysis. At the laboratory, four
randomly selected aliquots of the gquanerly composite sample must be obtained with each
one analyzed for total arsenic, lead, chromium, cadmium, mercury, copper and nigke! using
EPA Method 3050. In addition, a Synthetic Precipitation Leaching Procedure (SPLP)
extract, EPA Method 1312, of one aliguot must be prepared and analyzed for volatile
organic compounds using EPA Method 8260 and for semi-volatile organic compounds using
EPA Method 8270. The geometric mean conoentration for arsenic and the mean
concentrations for the other wetals of all four aliquots analyzed and the single SPLP arganic
analyses shall be considered the resulting concentrations for the quarterly composite sample.

At anytime a significant change in the operation or source material occurs, or changes in the
quarterly sampling results indicate significant changes from the baseline data, the baseline
testing protocol will be reconfirmed,

After one year of routine {(weekly & quarterly) sampling at the facility, the licensee may
request a reduction in the sampling parameters and/or frequencies. The EPGMD evaluation
of this request will be based upon the results of the weekly and quarterly sampling and other
relevam data for the facility.

C. Sampiing Protocol

1)

2)

D. Data analysis

1)

2)

Samples may be collected by an eperator from the facility trained in accordance with Rule
62-701.320(15), F.A.C., or by personnel from a FDEP approved laboratory provided the
SOP in Appendix B of the Guidance Manua! is followed.

Laboratories conducting the analysis must have a NELAC Certification in accordance with
the requirernents of Chapter 62-160, F.A.C. Analysis of the SPLP extracts must be
conducted using detection levels at or below FDEP ground water standards and criteria.

Analysis of raw data will be performed using the procedures outlined in Appendix C of the
RSM Guidance Manual. If the data for a chemical of concern (COC) is normally
distributed, then the arithmetic means and the upper 95 percent confidence limits for the
means shall be calculated using the calculation method provided in Appendix C of the
Guidance Manual,

If the data for a COC is not normally distributed, then a lognormal ransformation of the
data is allowed using the calculation method provided in Appendix C of the Guidance
Manual. If the log transformed data are normally distributed, then the transformed data can
be used to calcuiate the geometric mean and the upper 95 percent confidenee limit value for
the COC(s). The procedures in Appendix C shall be followed for this transformation.

Page 10 of 11



APPLICANT: Mr. Charles Gusmano, President EPGMD License Number: SW-WP00003-09
FACILITY NAME: Sun Recycling, LLC#2 DEP Permit Number: 0148031-010-S0

E. Reporting
D

For management of RSM a Quarterly Report shall also be submitted to the PPRAQD ' —
quarterly, by the fifieenth (15™) day of the first month following a quarter (January, April, -
July, and October). Two complete sets of all laboratory reports showing results of the '
routine composite (weekly & quarterly) sampling, results of the leaching tests, and a _'_
summary of the data shall be submitted {use of electronic means subject to PPRAQD -
approval) to the PPRAQD office. The summary of the routine sampling data shall include

the following:

The summary shall be in a table format and shall list the analytical results for the COC(s)
evaluated in each weekly, 8-hour composite sample apalyzed during the quarter and any
COC identified during the quarterly sampling, The table shall also include information
showing the FDEP"s soil cleanup goal corresponding to each COC. For the purpose of this
summary, 8 COC is one which exceeds the direct exposure residential risk level or
leachabitity goal listed in the FDEP’s goil cleanup goals, -

Page 1] of 1}
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401 SW 4th St, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441 to 2281 NW 16th St, Pompano Beach, FL 330... Page 10of2 '

Directions to 2281 NW 16th 51, Pompan
Beach, FL 33069 '
6.8 mi — about 13 mins

https://maps.google.com/maps=d&source=s_d&saddr=401+8. W .+4th+Street,+Deerfield... 5/23/2013



401 SW 4th St, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441 1o 2281 NW 16th St, Pompanoe Beach, FL. 330... Page2of 2

401 SW 4th St, Deerfield Beach, FL 33441

1. Head east on SW 4th St foward SW Martin Luther King Jr Ave - go 0.1 mi
total 0.1 mi

r) 3. Take the 1st right onto SW 10th St | ‘  go08mi
About 2 mins total 1.4 mi

et

r 5. Take exit 388 for Copans Road W : go 0.6 mi
About 53 secs total 4.9 mi

i

| (-l 7. Tumn feft onto Powerline Rd g0 0.8 mi
About 2 mins total 8.8 mi

? 2281 NW 16th St, Pompano Beach, L 33069

Thase directions are for planning purposes only. You may:find that censtruction projécts, Waffic, weathgr, or-othier svents may cause '
conditions to differ from the map results, and you shoutd plan your route accordingly. You rmuast obéy al signs or notices regarding your
rousle. .

Map data ©2013 Google
| Diractions weren't right? Please find your routs on maps.google.com and click "Report a problem” at the bottom leff. |

https://maps.google.com/maps H=d&source=s_d&saddr=401+S. W.+4th+Street,+Deerfield... 5/23/2013
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COMERICA BANK
WG 3236
411 WEST LAFAYETTE, 77H FL., DETROIT, Ml 48226

Environmental Services
Comericz Bank

41! West Lafayefts Streat
Detroit MI 48226

(313) 222-5562

(313} 2226564 (fox)

Ian 8. Mearns
Viee President

May 23, 2013

Purchasing Division

City of Deerfield Beach

(Centra] City Campus, Bidg, A., 2nd Floor)
401 S.W. 4th Street

Deerfickd Beach, FI. 33441

Re: Proposal

Dear Sir:

It has come to my attention that ag part of the bid process you have requested a letter
describing the terms of the financial relationship between Southern Waste Systems, Inc.,

Sun Recycling LLC and Comerica Bank. This letter serves to document that relationship.

Please use this letter in your approval process. However, as customary in letters such as
this, no other parties can rely on this letter,

It should be known that Sonthern Waste Systems, Inc. has been & client of Comerica
Baok since October of 2007. We currently have a $35 million senior bank credit facility.

Comerica has no obligation to update this letter if there are any to changes to information
provided herein. Comerica is pleased to be a partner with Southern Waste.

Sipcerely,

S. Mearns
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Membexs and Partners of
Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southem Waste Systers Holdings, LP and Affiliates

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Southern Waste Holdings
Management, LLC, Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affillates as of December 31,
2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in members® equity and
pariners’ capital and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Companies® management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
thess financial statements based on our audit,

States of America. Those standards tequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee of material misstatement,
Axn audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurss in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well a5 evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC, Southern
Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates as of December 31, 2011 and the consolidated results
of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Do, Blaloole , Marti. £ Sellori LLc

DIVINE, BLALOCK, MARTIN & SELLARI, LLC
May 31, 2012
Reviged: July 3, 2012

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Sonthern Waste Systems Holdings, LY and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheet

. Décember 31, 2011

1

Current Assais
Cash ’ 1,106,975
Accounts Recoivable : 9,079,181
Other Receivables _ _ 1,750,616
Inventory : 38,052
Assets Held for Resale 787,482
Prepuid Expenses 354,892

‘Total Current Assets 13,11‘?,198

Properiy, Plant and Equipment « Net of Depreciation 71,019,906

Other Assels
Deposite 1,030,614
Depreciable Azsets not yet Placed in Service 5,001,185
Goodwill : 8,456,262
Intangible Assets - Net of Amortization 658,958
Other Assels 75,018

Total Other Assefs 15,262,037
Total Assefs ' 3__09.399.141

The accompanying notes are an integral port of thess finmeial statements,
Page 2




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2011

Liabilitles, Members' Equity and Partoers' Capital

Current Liabilltles
Bank Qverdraft ] 1,342,682
Ascounts Payable 3,867,052
Acorned Expenses 1,800,148
Accrued mterest 240,757
Accrued Insurance Clains 302,790
Deaferred Revere ) 971,762 .
Customer Peposits 4,000
Current Portion of Long-Term Dsbt 1,826,027

Total Current Lisbflitles : ‘ ' ' 10,855,218

Lins of Credit’ . 26,404,962
Distributions Payable 2,798,225
Loan from Member - 3,530,577
Long-Term Debt, Net of Cument Pertion 306,644

‘Total Liabilifics 44,095,626

Members' Equity aud Partners' Capital
Members® Equity and Partners' Capitat - Controlling fterest © 36,508,398
Won ~ Controfling Interast in Members' Equity : 18,795,117

Total Members' Eqaity and Partners' Capital ' 55,303,515

Total Linbilities, Members' Equity
and Pariners' Capiial $ 99399141

The acconpaiyiig nofes are o Integral part of these flnaneial stalaments.
Paga 3




. Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended Decesnber 31, 2011

Revenues
Cost of Ravenues
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
Selling, General and Administrative

- Income from Operations

Other Income (Expense)
Rental Income
Bxpenses ~ Rentel Properties/Consulting
Depreciation Expenses « Rental Propesties
Interest Bxpense
Gain on Digpesition of Property & Bquipment
Impairment of Goodwiil
Lawsuit Settlement BExpenass
Other Incoms

Net Other Income (Expense)
Net Incorae Inctuding Non-Controlling Interests
Non-Contro!ling Interesis

Net Income - Controlling Interests

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depraciation
and Amortization (EBITDA)

The acoomponying noles are an integral part of these fluancial starewnenis.

Page d

$ 72,492,309

51,910,013

20,582,296

12,101,036

8,481,260

343,061
(1,039,175)
(1,091,939)
(289,765)
257,911
(515,000)
{15,585)

81,384

(2.259,108)
6,222,152

46,921
g 5175231

§ 18776403




Southern Waste Holdings Manapement, L1.C,
Southern Waste Systems Holdingz, LP and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity

and Partners' Capiinl
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Members' Equity and Partners' C’apiial
Janunary 1, 2011

Non - Controlling Interest In Members® Equity
August 9, 2011 :

Disteibutions
et Income

Fotal Members' Equity and Pariners' Capiial
December 31, 2011

Non - Controlling Interest In Members' Equity
December 31,2011

Members' Equity and Pariners' Capital - Controfling Interest
December 31, 2011

§ 43,662,011

11,521,310

(6,102,858}

6,222,152

585,303,515

18,705,117

§ 36,508,398

The accompanylng noles are an Integral pavl of these fincnstal stafements.

Page 5




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southexrn Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Consoldated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income

Adjustments ta reconcils Net Income to net cash provided by operating actlvities
Dapreciation and Amortization
Impairment of Goodwill
Gain oz Disposition of Froperty and Bquipment
Pecrease (Incrense) in Operating Assets
Angounts Reoslvable
Othier Receivables
Employse Loans Receivable
Asgets Hold for Resale
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Other Assets
Deposits
Increase (Decreass) in Operafting Linbilitles
- Acsounts Payable
Bank Overdrafts
Asorued Expenses
-Accrued Interest
-Acorued Asset Asquisition Costa
Acerued Insurence Clatms
Deferred Revenus

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisition of Depreciable Assets not yat Placed in Service
Capital Asset Acquisitions
Intengible Asset Acquisitions
Proceeds from Disposition of Property and Equipment

Net Cash Used By Investing Activifies

Fha aecomtpanylng notes are an tegral port of thuss finunelal statenents.
Page &

5 6,222,152

9,264,486
515,000
't 257911

2,270,918)
(1,028,089)
(282,289)
(480.950)
(5,180)
(33,073)
{75,018)
(28,073)

476,372

1,768,298
(194,876)

25,319
(647,066)
(3,624)

68,246

1330476
13,552,628

(4,234,874
(18,330,318)
(85,692)
66,240

(22,584,644)




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Exnded December 31, 2011

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Dabt
Repayment of Long Term Debt
Member Loan Repayment
Net _Burmwings on Lime of Credit
Cagh Distributions
Payment of Distributions Payable
Loen from Member

Net Cash Provided By Financing Actlvitfes

et Inerease n Cagh and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginnlug of Perlod
Cash from Inclusion of VIE (NOTB 1)

Cagh and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

The accompanying notes are an hiegral pori of fhese flnanclal sinfements.
Page 7

524,010
(327,431)
2,030,226
12,673,876
(1,431,179)
{7.811,319)
3,530,577

9,188,760

136,744

714,110

236,121

$ 1,106,975
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Southern Waste Holdings Management, LI.C,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTE1:

Organization

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southern
Waste Holdings Management, LLC; Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP; Southern
Waste Systems, LLC; Sun Recycling, LLC; 750 Hillbrath Drive, LLC; Southem Waste
Systems, LTD; Scuthern Aviation Systems, LLC; 11216, LLC; 11316, LLC; 11714,
LLC; Palm City Transfer & Recycling, Ine.; Caiedoniam Indemnity SP 134, Souﬂmm
Consulting Services, LLC; SWS National Accounts, LLC; Environmental Demolition
Pariners, LLC and Southern Waste Systems of Long Island LLC (the Companies),
which ave affiliated by majority ownership and/or control. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. ]

The Companies own and operate matexial recovery fuoilities, yard-waste facilities and an
enclosed transfer station that also serves as the corporate offices. The Companies have
been recognized by industry publications for employing Clean-Tach Teclmologes, which
encompass knowledge-based fechmologies, producis and services that optimize the use of
naturel yesources while reducing ecological impact and adding economic value by
significantly lowering costs and improving profitability. In short, Clean-Tech
Technologies are more efficient and pollute less. The facilities are located in Dade, .
Broward and Palm Berch Counties, Florida and Long Island, New York, _

The Companies and their business operations are summarized as follows:

Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC was organized in the State of Delawars -
on Degember 27, 2005. The Company is the General Pariner and owns 2 1% equity
interest of Southem Waste Systemns Holdings, LP and Southern Waste Systems, LTD,

Additionally the Company owns a 1% Intersst and is the Managing Member of
Southern Waste Systems, LLC, Sun Recycling, LLC and Southern Waste Systems of
Long Island, LLC.

Southern Waste Systerns Holdings, LP wes organized in the State of Delaware on
December 30, 2005 and is the 99% owner of Southexn Waste Systems, LLC, Sun
Recyceling, LLC, and Southern Waste Systems, LTD and Southern Waste Systems of
Long Island, LLC. The Company alse owns 100% of Environmental Demolition
Partneys, L1C.

Southern Waste Systems, LLC was organized in the State of Florida on July 22, 1999,
Southern Waste Systems, LLC collects and disposes of construction and demolition
debris in Southeast Florida,




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANY
' ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINULD)

Sun Recycling, LLC was organized in the State of Florida on Janvery 26, 2000. Sun
Recycling, LLC recycles construction and demolition debris in Southeast Florida.

Southermn Waste Systems, LTD was organized in the State of Florida on June 24, 1999
end owns land and improvements in Southeast, Florida that are leased to Sun

Reeyeling, LLC,

790 Hilibrath Drive, LLC, & wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Waste Systems,
LTD, was organized in the State of Florida on November 13, 2000 and owns land,
buildings end improvements in Lantana, Florida that are leased to Southern Waste
Systems, LLC and Sun Recyeling, LLC.

Southern Aviation Systems, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Waste
- Systems, LLC, was organized in the State of Florida on October 13, 2005 and owns a
helicopter. The helicopter is used to provide aviation services to the Companies.

11216, LLC, 11316, LLC and 11714, LLC, wholly owned subsidiaries of Southern
Waste Systems, LTD, were organized in the State of Eloxida on June 22, 2007 and
own residential real estate. The properties ate oceupied by officers of the Companies
at fair market value rents,

Palm City Transfer & Recycling, Inc., 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Recycling,
LLC, was incoxporated in the State of Florida on July 11, 2001 and recycles
construction and demolition debris in Southeast Florida, The company was liquidated
August 15, 2011,

Caledonian Indemnity SP 134, e wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Waste
Systems, LLC, was organized in the Cayman Islands on January 1, 2007 and provides
workers® c-ompensat;on reinsurance of the Companies primery pohcy up to specified
limnits,

Southern Consulting Services, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Waste
Systems, LLC, was organized in the State of Flonda on July 15, 2011 and provides
consulting gervices.

8WS National Accounts, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Waste
Systems, LLC, was organized in the State of Florida on August 11, 2011.

Environmental Demolition Pariners, LLC was organized in the State of Florida on
May 6, 2010 and performs demolition services in Southeast Florida,




Southexn Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE1:  ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Southern Waste Systems of Long Island, LLC was organized in the State of New York on
April 29, 2011 and is 60% owner of Shelter Island Environmental Services, LLC, which
collects municipal solid waste in New York.

Variable Interest Entity

Certain entities in which the equity investors do not have the charsoteristics of a controlling
financial interest ot do not have sufficient equity at.xisk for the entity to finance its gotivities
without additional subordinated financial support from other parﬁes are deemed to be
variable interest entities (VIEs). The controlling financial ifterest in a VIE may be achieved
tbrough arrangements that do not involve voting interests.

FASB ASC 810-10 requires a VIE to ba consolidated by its primery beneficiary.
Beginning August 9, 2011, the Companies are the primary beneficiary of Prime Realty
Capital, LLC, a VIE, whose main business activity includes the rental of office and
warehouse space to the Companies. Primarily because of the common control and the
close interrelationship between these entities, the Company concluded that consolidation
better presents the substance of the relationship between these enfities than presenting
financial information for these entities separately, Accordingly, the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the sffiliate have been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, Generally, the non-controlling interest in equity and
net income consists of equity and net income of the VIE, and the controlling interest in
equity and net income consists of equity and net income of the Companies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash sguivalents include all highly liquid inveshmmts with ong:nal
maturities of three months or less at the time of puxchase

Accounis Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at fair value on the date the companies are entitled to
the invoice. The Companies provide allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of its ocustomers to satisfy their obligation. The
Companies estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical collection
experience, current trends, credit policies and reviews of open accounts.

Intangible Assets

Tniangible essets consist of permits and covenants not to compete. The permits and
covenants are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
usually ten years or less,




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LF and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Property, Plant and Equipment

Propesty and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the estimated usefial lives of the related assets. The estimated useful lives of
equipment, vehicles, furniture and fixtures range from three to ten years. Buildings and
improvements have estimated useful lives of twenty to thirty nine years, When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, the assets and related allowances for depreciation are
elitainated from their respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in net
income, Repairs and maintenance charges that do not increase the useful lives of the
assets are charged to operations as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the cost in excess of fair value of identifiable assets of acquired businesses
and had been amortized through December 31, 2001. In July 2001 the FASB issued
SFAS No, 141, Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, effective for years boginning afier December 15, 2001, These standards
modified the accounting tules related to accounting for business combinations,
smortization of intangible assets and the method of eccounting for impairment. Under
SFAS No, 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no

longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests. Impairment of
$515,000 has been recorded for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2011,

Revenue Recognition

The Companies recognize revenue from collection, transfer, recycling and disposal as
services are provided. Cextein customers are billed -in advence and, accordingly,
recognition of the related revenues is deferred until the services are provided, Revenues
from the sale of resyclable materials are recognized upon shipment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America raquires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported. amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and Habilities,
Accordingly, actval tesults could differ from these estimates,

Advertising

The company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expenses
aggregated $241,961 for the year ended December 31, 2011,

Puga i2




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE L: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Ineome Taxes

The Companies (with the exception of Palm City Travsfer & Recycling, Int.) are treated
as partnerships for federal income tax purposes and are not subject to federal or state
income taxes. Therefore, no income tax provision has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements. The members and partners of the Companies are
taxed on their respective shares of the Companies® earnings. Palm City Transfer &
Recycling, Inc. was a C-corporation with no material income tax consequences.

NOTE 2; ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Components of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2011 wers as follows:
Accounts receivable $ 9439,i83
Allowance for doubtful accounts (360.002)

§ 2070.181
NOTE 3: ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTRUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable is presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet net of estimated
nncoliectible amounts. The Company records an allowance for estimated uncollectible
accounts in 2n amount epproximeting anticipated losses. Individual uncollectible
accounts are written off ageinst the allowance when collection of the individual accounts
appeats doubtful. Changes in the Allowance for Doubtfud Accounts during the year ended
December 31, 2011 were as follows: '

Allowance for doubtful accounts, January i § 360,824
Additions charged to expenses 449,194
Reductions (charge offs (472,847)
Recoveries 22,831
Allowanee for doubtfl accounts, December 31

NOTE 4: LOAN FROM MEMBER

The loan from member of $3,530,577 as of Decetmber 31, 2011 represents an unsecured
demand loan payable, bearing no interest te a managing member, Anthony Lomangino,
from Scouthern Waste Systems, LLC.




Southern Waste Holdings Manragement, LEC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -
December 31, 2011 ' ‘ -

NOTE 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At December 31, 2011, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Land and improvements ' $ 27,162,666
Building and improvements 16,399,502
Equipment and vehicles . 68,983,227

Furniture and fiztures e 1.861.820
114,407,215

Less accumulated depreciation {43.387.309)
£..71.019.906

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2011, was $9,110,455. —
NOTE 6: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets at December 31, 2011 consist of the following;
Covenants not to compete $ 690,982
Permits ' 851,531
Customer list __ 104150

' 1,646,673
Less accumulated amortization : (987.715)

| §658.958

Goodwill $_8.496.262
Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2011, was $154,031.

NOTE7:  ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY

The Companies may be subject o potential liability for environmental damege, inclading
personal injury and property damage, which its operations may cause. The Comparies
may be potentially liable for damage resulting from conditions existing before properties
- were acquired, Any substeniial liability incwred by the Companies arising from
environmental damage could have a material adverse effect on the Companies’ business. : o

NOTES:  LINE OF CREDIT

Revolving line of credit borrowing agreement for $35,000,000 with
Comerica Financing, interest of 1.80% over a LIBOR based rate —

payable monthly on the outstanding principal belanse maturing on -
October 1, 2015, Principal balance at December 31, 2011. $ 26404962 —

Paga 14




- Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE9:  NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable as of December 31, 2011 consists of the following:

Note payable to A.F. Dozer, Inc. and A.F. Roll off, Ino., payable in
quarterly installments of $64,500 including interest at 7.25% through
Oetober 2010. Payments that are due have not been made.

Management has elected to suspend payment pendmg the outeome of

litigation,

Unsecured note payable to former member for buy-oui, payable in
monthly installments of $16,356 including interest ut 4.57% maturing
March 28, 2014. Payments that are due have not been made.
Management has elected to suspend payment pending the outcome of

litigation with the payee ~ Ahvon Farache, 1,579,000

$ 600,000

Note payable to Land Rover Financial Group, payeble in monthly
insfallmentz of $2438 including interest at 0.9%, maturing
September 2014, secured by machinery and equipment.

Hote Payable to Land Rover Financial Group, payable in menthly
installients of $1,910 including interest at 0.9%, maturing October
2014, secured by machinery and equipment,

Note payable to BMW Filuancial Services, payable in monthly
installments of $2,477 including interest at 0%, maturing April 2012,
secured by machinery and equipment,. According to APB-21, interest
should be imputed using the inferest rate prevailing as of each note’s

origination date. The effect of this departure from GAAP on the
financial statement is immaterial, ‘

: 14,862

‘ 2,332,671
Less current portion 1,826,027

$ 506,644

Maturities of notes payable at December 31, 2011 are as foliows:
| 2012 $ 1,826,027

2013 232,407
2014 225,542
2015 48,695
2016 -0-
Thereafter 0=

§ 2,332,671



Southern Waste I{oldmgs Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 10: ACCRUED INSURANCE CLAIMS

Included under the caption, other operating companies, is Caledonian Indemnity SP 134
which had actual and projected insurance claims & expenses in the amount of $1,163,009
during 2011 of which $802,790 was accrued at December 31, 2011,

NOTE 11: DISTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE

Distributions payable as of Decernber 31, 2011 répresent declared distributions not yet
paid from Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP to the Anthony Lomangino Grantor
Retained Annuity Trust, & limited pariner.

NOTE12: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is periodically subject to claims and lawsuits that arise in the ordinary |

course of business, Management believes that any losses resuliing from such maiters
would be covered in whole or in part by the Company’s liability insurance policies and
would not have a material effect on the financial position or net income of the Company.

The Compeny is involved in a Captive Insurance arraugement for iis workers

compensation insurance. It is required {0 camy a line of credit of approximately
$2,000,000 to cover the potential Hability that may arlse from workers compensation
insurance claims,

NO'I‘E 13. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

At times during 2011, the Company maintained in excess of $250 000 of its cash and
cash equivalents at one bank. A potential loss exposure exists to the extent of any
uninsured deposits in excess of this amount that are maintained at en individual bank.
Management believes the possibility of this loss exposure is remots. With respect to
accounis receivable, the Company extends credit to its customers for services provided
without collatexal. Less than 20% of the Companies® ravenues are generated by its top ten
oustomers.

NOTE 14: SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

The statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31 contains cash paid during
the year for:

Interest LZQQ;%Q‘




Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC,
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP and Affiliates
Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Non-Cash Operating, Investing and Financing Transactions

During 2011 the companies had the following non-cash transactions related to the
inclusion of a variable mterest entity (NOTE 1) in the consolidated financial statements;
Increases in loans receivable $360,731, land and building $11,019,171 and accrued

expenses $94,713,
During 2011 the Companies had non-cash disiributions of $4,671,679 that were declared

to partmers. This was comprised of decreases in Bmiployee Loans of $282,289,
Intercompany Loan of $40,071 and Distributions Payable of $4,349,319,

NOTE15: ACQUISITION

January 1, 2011, Southern Wasfte Systems Holdings, LP acquired Environmental
Demolition Partners, LLC (EDP, LLC).

As a result, Member’s Equity end Pariners® Capital was affected as follows:

Beginning Members’ Equity and Pariners® Capital - the Compames $ 43,710,564
Beginning Members® Deficit — EDP, LLC {47,653}

Restated Beginning Members® Equity and Partners’ Equity $ 43662911

NOTE 16: EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAXES, DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION (EBITDA)

The caleulation of EBITDA (which is herein provided at the request of management) is
as follows:

Net income ) $ 6,222,152
Interest expense 289,765
Depreciation 2,110,455
Amortization 154.031

813776403
NOTE 17: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has svaluated subsequent events occurring afier the consolidated balance
sheet date of December 31, 2011 through the date of May 31, 2012, which is the date the
consolidated financial statements were available fo be issued. Based on this evaluation,
the Company bas determined that no subsequent events have ocourred, which require
disclosure in the financial statements. .
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4699 Nob Hill Road C AP!TAE_ E ANK ' Phone: 954,393, 1504
Sunrise, FL.33351 LR ¢ 4 hhe BMRE WRN Fax: 954.748.6222

May 23, 2013

City of Deerfield Beach
Purchasing Division

401 SW 4" Street
Deerfield Beach, FL 33441

To Whom it May Concern:

Bergeron Land Bevelopment, Inc. currently has a secured line of credit with Capital Bank with maximum
borrowings up to 55,000,000 with interest rate at the Wall Street Journal Prime rate (3.25%).
Borrowings on this fine are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets as well zs 1* Real Estate

Mortgage on its headguarters located in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.

The Iine of credit has been handled as agreed and is currently in good standing.

Sincerely, .
Tty fo oy Mo
Tony Mandravellos

SVP [ Corporate & Commercial Lending

Equal Housing Lender =
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V BERKOWITZDICKPOLLACK & BRANT

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS, LLF

Plosse direc munii vo Mtanid office:

200 South Biscayne Boulevard 515 East Lag Olas Boudevard

Sixth Floor . . PBiftcenth Bloor

Miami, Florida 33131-5310 Fore Lauderdale, FL 333012281
. ‘I‘dcplmnc 305-379-7000 Telephone: 934.712-7000

Tolt Pree: 809-999-1CPA, (1272) Toll Free: 800-999-1CPA (1272}

Fax: 305-379-8200 Fax: 954-712-7070

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT wana bdhsom

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Bergeron Land Development, nc.
and Bergeron Sand & Rock Mining, Inc.

‘We have audited the-accompanying combined balance sheet of Bergeron Land Development, Inc,
and Subsidiaries and Bergeron Sand & Rock Mining, Inc. as of December 31, 2011, and the related
combined statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These
combiried financial statements are the responsibility of the Companies’ management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

' States of America. Those standards requirc that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the combined
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prineiples used and significant
estitnates made by management, as well ag evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred o above present fairly, in all material
respects, the combined financial position of Bergeron Land Development, Inc. and Subsidiaries and
Bergeron Sand & Rock Mining, Inc. as of December 31, 2011, and the combined results of their
operations and their cash flows for'the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles genexally
accepted in the United States of America, |

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as
awhole. The supplemental information (pages 24-28) is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
rzanagement and was derived from and relates directly to the undeslying accounting and other records
used to prepare the combined financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconeiling such information directly to the undexlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the combined financial statements as a whole.

&AA?M Pthed s oot LLO

Miami, Florida
April 24, 2012




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC,

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Current portion of accounts receivable:
Contracts receivabie, net

Other - related parties
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
Inventories ;
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, less current portion

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Line of credit
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of retainage payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

RETAINAGE PAYABLE, less current portion
TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
' SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Sec notes to combined financial statements,

$ 6747323

2,027,208
117,206
5,145,357
46,615

36,506
14,140,215

1,529,212

4,794,126

' §_ 20463553

§ 3432931
25,563
2,653,913
604,217

——
6,793,510

1,265,400

8,058,910 .

12,404,643

$ 20463553




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

REVENUES FROM CONTRACTS
COST OF REVENUES FROM CONTRACTS

GROSS PROFIT FROM CONTRACTS

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Self storage rental income, net of depreciation and real estate taxes
Qther rental income
Guain on sale of fixed assets
Interest income
Loss on sale of securities
Interest expense

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net

NET INCOME .

See notes to combined financial statements.

$ 44,916,011

41,890,698

3,025,313

2,905,155

120,158

264,637
78,188
137,858
64,039
(57,181)
(72,560)

' 414298}.

$ 335,139
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS _

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income § 535139
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
- cash used in operating activities: : i
Depreciation 1,000,654
Change in provision for loss on uncompleted contracts (25,937)
Gain on sale of equipment ' ' : (137,858)
Loss on sale of secnrities : 57,181
Changes in assets and Hlabilities: ‘ . -
Contracts receivable 2,353,972
Other receivables 30,999
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings (4,564,878)
Inventories : 1,185
Accounts payable (1.857,951)
Accrued expenses : (11,747)
Retainage payable : 1,120,485 -
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings _ (4,624,726}
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ___ {6,658,621)
NET CASH USED IN :
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (6,123,482
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of securities {64,409)
Proceeds from sale of securities 2,032,776
Purchase of equipment (265,652)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 154,583
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,857,298
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIHS: -
Contributions from sharcholders 6,250,000 -
Net borrowings on line of credit 3,432,931
Repayments of long-term debt (158,077)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES _ 9,524,854 -




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS--Continued

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
) CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest

See notes to combined financial statements.

5,258,670
1,488,653

6,74

§ 72560,




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011

NOTE A-THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Companies: Bergeron Land Development, Inc. and Subsidiaries (“Bergeron”) and

‘Bergeron Sand & Rock Mining, Inc. (“Sand”) (collectively, the “Companies™) are engineering
and construction contractors, deriving their revenues principally from land development,
highway construction, and debris cleanup services. The Companies’ contract — bid work is
principally with governmental and taxing districts throughout the State of Florida.

On December 24, 1998, Bergeron Land Development of Central Florida, Inc. (“Bezgeron
- Central”) was incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bergeron Land Development, Inc.
Bergeron Central assumed all the activities relating to Bergeron Land Development, Inc.’s
operations in the Central Florida region.

" On April 14, 2006, Bergeron Emergency Services, Inc. (“BES”) was incorporated as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bergeton Land Development, Inc. BES assumed all marketing and
contract bidding activities for debris cleanup services. '

Principles of Combination and Basis of Presentation: The combiﬁed financial staternents

include the consolidated accounts of Bergeron (which is comprised of Bergeron Land
Development, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Bergeron Central and BES) and Sand.
All material intercompany account balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

and combination.

Revenue and Cost Recognition: The Companies account for contract revenues and related
costs of construction under the percentage-of-completion method. Under this method of
accounting, contract revenues are recognized based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the
total estimated costs on each individual contract,. The Companies consider contracts in
progress final when they receive a release of lien from the customers. Periodic revisions to
contract costs are provided as necessary,




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A~THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES-Continued

Revenue ggg. Cost Recognition--Continued: Contract costs include all direct material, Iabor

costs, and subcontracts and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as
indirect labor, sipplies, tools; repairs and depreciation. General and administrative costs,
 including pre-contract costs, are charged to expense as incurred. :

The Companies segment contracts into multiple profit centers when the applicable criterionis
met pursuant to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(*GAAP”). InFebruary 2010, Bergeron commenced work as a subcontractor on Segment Cof
the 1-595 Roadway Improvements Project contract (the “Contract™) located in Broward
County, Florida. Management determined that the Contract met the applicable criterion for
segmenting, and accordingly, segmented the Contract into two phases: Phase I and Phase I1.

Phase 1 of the Contract was completed during the year ended Deceraber 31, 2010. Revenues

and related costs for Phase II are included in the accompanying statement of income and the

supplemental sckedule of contract activity.

Provisions for estimated Iosses on contracts in progress are made in the period in which such
losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability,
including those arising from contract penalty provisions, may result in revisions to costs and
revenues and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined,

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Bergeron determined that significant scope
modifications to Phase II of the Contract were required to meet the current design
specifications under the Contract. These scope modifications were discussed with the Contract
Owner prior to performance of the original work. Subsequently, the Contract Owner has
failed to acknowledge these scope changes. Bergeron is currently pursuing an equitable
adjustment fo the contract price through the enforcement of dispute resolution provisions
- contained in the Contract. Bergeron determined that the recognition of these claims in
. contract revenues is appropriate due to Bergeron’s legal basis for the claims, the specific
circumstances that caused the claims, the identification of additional costs incurred and the
quality of the evidence supporting the claims. As a result, approximately $6,840,000 and
$4,114,000 were added to the contract price and estimated contract cost of Phase II of the
Contract, respectively. These claims resulted in the recognition of an additiona! $445,000 in
gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2011.




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A-~-THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES~Continued

Revcnue and Cost Recag_:ﬁg’gn-oontinngg: Profit incentives are included in revenues when

the Companies meet the agreed apon customer requirements.

Amounts related to final contract setilements are recorded when the amounts have been
received or awarded, During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Companies received

$350,000 in final contract settlements.

The asset, “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of biflings,” represents revenues recognized |
in excess of amounts billed. The liability, “Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings,”
1epresents billings in excess of revenues recognized.

BES provides debns cleanup services in connection with disaster recovery efforts. Cleanup
services primarily consist of clearing vegetative debris from roadways and dumping it at
disposal sites. Cleanup services are recognized as revenues when the services are provided,
Related costs, such as subcontractors, labor costs, equipment and indirect costs, are charged to
expense as incurred. The Company did not have any significant revenues, or related cost of
revenues, attributed to debris clean-up services for the year ended December 31, 2011,

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Companies’ cash and cash equivalents include demand
deposits and highly lquid debt instruments which are part of the Companies’ cash
management program and have original maturities of three months or less.

Investment in Securities: Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for
the purpose of selling them in the near term are classified as trading securities and are
reported at fair value, with unrealized and realized gains and losses inchuded in current period
earnings. The Companies currently have no securities classified as trading securities.

Debt securities that the Companies have a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held to maturity securities and are reported at amortized cost. The Compames
currently have no securities classified as held to maturity securities.

Debt and equity securities not classified as either held to maturity securities or trading
securities are classified as available for sale securities and are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains or losses excluded from current period earnings and accounted for as other

10
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A--THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES—-Continued

Investment in Securities-continued: comprehensive income (loss) and reported as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity until these gains or losses are realized. Realized gainsand
losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold, are included in the
accompanying combined statement of income. During the year ended December 31,2011, the
Companies sold all of their held for sale securities at a loss 0£$57,181. As a result of the sale
of securities, the loss of $57,181, net of holding gains arising during the year of $44,696 was

reclassified from accumulated other cqmprehensive loss to comprehensive income duringthe

year ended December 31, 2011,

Accounts Receivable: In the normal course of business, the Companies require payment from
their customers within a term of 30 days. However, customers withhiold a retainage amount on
the contract receivable balance, which is paid upon completion of the contract, Management
establishes a reserve for potential credit losses based on historical expetience and any specific
customer collection issues that have been identified, Management’s reserves, when realized,
have been within the range of management’s allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance
for doubtful accounts was approximately $25,000 at December 31, 2011.

Property and Equipment: Depreciation is provided using straight-line and accelerated
methods over the estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets as follows:

Self storage facility and buildings and improvements 5-39 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Machinery and equipment 3-7 years
Vehicles ' 5 years
Vessel ' 5 years

Long-lived Assets: Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When
required, impairment losses on assets nsed are recognized based on the excess of the asset’s
carrying amount over the fair value of the asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less cost tosell. During the year
ended December 31, 2011, management determined that the long-lived assets were not
impaired. '

11




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC,

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A--THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES--Continued ‘ :

Fair Value Measurements--continued: In accordance with GAAP, the Companies define fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or the price paid to transfer a ljability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. GAAP
establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of
observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most
observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are ioputs that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the Companies. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the
Companies’ assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or Hability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets,

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

+ quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

» quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

e inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
ability;

« inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other meauns,

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input
must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the
fair value measurement.

The asset or liability’s fair vaiue measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the

lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement., Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable ipputs,
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A-THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES--Coatinued

Fair Value Measurements--continued: As of December 31, 2011, the Companies did not have

any assets requiring fair vglue measurement on a recurring basis,

Advertising Costs: The Companies expense all advertising costs as they are incurred.
Advertising costs amounted to approximately $6,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011

Sales Tax: The Companies collect and remit sales tax assessed by different governmental
. duthorities that are both imposed on and concurrent with a revenue-producing transaction
between the Companies and their clientele. The Companies report the collection of these
taxes on a gross basis (included in revenues and cost of revenues), The amount of these taxes
isnot significant to the combined financial position or results of operations of the Companies.

Income Faxes: The Companies and their shareholders have elected to be treated as a “Small
Business Corporation’” for income tax purposes under Subchapter “S” of the Internal Revenue
Code. In accordance with the provisions of such election, the Companies’ income and losses
pass through to their shareholders, and accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been
made in the accompanying combined financial statements.

The Companies account for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with GAAP, which
Tequires recognition in the combined financial statements of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position
following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the amount
recognized in the combined financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than
30 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax
authority. The Companies have no material unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31,
2011. The Companies do not expect that unrecognized tax benefits will increase within the
next twelve months. The Companies’ tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2007
through 2010 remain subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions, The Companies
recognize accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as income tax

expense. .

Management Estimates: The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity

with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2011, the disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities and the reported revenues and expenses for the year then ended, Actual results could
13




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A--THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES--Continued

’ Management Bstimates--continued: vary from the estimates made in the preparation of the

combined financial statements. Revisions in estimated contract profits (losses) are made in the
year in which circumstances tequiring the revisions become known. The effect of changes in
estimates of contract profits was to decrease income in 2011 by approximately $335,000 from
that which would have been reported had the revised estimate been used as the basis of
recognition of contract profits (losses) in the preceding year.

Risks and Uncertainties: During the normal course of business, the Companies encounter
significant economic and business risk. The Companies, as weil as the construcfion industry as

a whole, are affected by changes in economic conditions (such as interest rates, personal .
- income, unemployment levels and consumer confidence) and operate in an intensely

competitive environment. In addition, the Companies enter into fixed-price contracts under
competitive bidding which requires them to make estimates of totaf costs and estimated gross
profits. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability, and the economic
environment and market conditions may result in revisions to costs and revenues. Any
adjustments that nitimately may be made because of inherent uncertainties in estimating costs
could have a material impact on the combined financial statements.

Subsequent Events: The Companies have evaluated subsequent events and ttansactions for
potential recognition or disclosure in the combined financial statements through April 24, 2012
the date the combined financial statements were available to be issued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12,
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments fo the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accurnulated Other Comprehensive Income in

Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. The amendments of this ASU are effective at the

same time as the amendments in ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220):
Presentation of Comprehensive Income , so that entities will not be required to comply with the
presentation requirements in ASU No. 2011-05 that ASU No. 2011-12 is deferring. All other
requirements in ASU No. 2011-05 are not affected by ASU No. 2011-12, including the
requirement to report comprehensive income either in a single continuous financial statement

.OF in two separate but consecutive financial statements. Nonpublic entities should begin
applying these requirements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2012, and interim and

annual periods thereafter. The Companies do not believe the future adoption of ASU 2011-12
will have a significant impact on the Companies” combined financial statements.
14




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A--THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES--Continugd

Recent A@ unting Pronouncements--continued: In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU

.~ 2011-11, Balance Sheet Disclosures relating to Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11
amended ASC210, Balance Sheet, to facilitate the comparison between disclosure gnidance in
GAAP and IFRS. The amendments will enhance disclosures required by GAAP by requiring
improved information about financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either
(1) offset in accordance with either ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45 or (2) subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are
offset in accordance with either ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45, This information will
enable uscrs of an entity's financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements on an entity's financial position, including the effect or potential effect of
rights of setoff associated with certain financial instruments and derivative instruments. The
amendment is to be applied retrospectively for all comparative periods presented and is
effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2013. The Companies do not believe
the future adoption of ASU 2011-11 will have a significant impact on the Companies’
combined financial statements. _ -

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220):
Presentation of Comprehensive Income. This ASU -allows an entity the option to present the
total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in
two separate but consecutive statements. In both choices, an entity is required to present each
component of net income along with total net income, each component of other
comprehiensive income along with a total for other comprehensive income, and a total amount
for comprehensive income. ASU 2011-05 climinates the option to present the components of
other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity. The
amendments to the Codification in the ASU do not change the items that must be reported in
other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be
reclassified to net income. ASU 2011-05 should be applied retrospectively. For nonpublic
- entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years ending after December 13, 2012, and
interim and annual periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. The Companies do not
belicve the future adoption of ASU 2011-05 will have a significant impact on the Companies’
~ combined financial statements.

15




BERGERON LAND DEVELCPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE A~THE COMPANIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES--Continued '

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820):
Amendments to Achieve Common Fafr Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.

GAAP arid IFRSs. This ASU represents the converged guidance of the FASB and the JASB

(the “Boards™) on fair value measurement. The collective efforts of the Boards and their staffs,
reflected in ASU 2011-04, have resulted in common requirements for measuring fair value and
for disclosing information about fair value measurements, including a consistent meaning of
the term “fair value.” The Boards have concluded the common requirements will result in

greater comparability of fair value meéasurements presented and disclosed in financial .

statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The amendments to the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification in this ASU are to be applied prospectively. For
nonpublic entities, the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2011. Noupublic entities may apply the amendments in ASU 2011-04 early, but no earlier
than for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Companies do not believe
the future adoption of ASU 2011-04 will have a significant impact on the Campames
combined financial statements.

NOTE B--RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Compmnes share common ownership and/or management and, in certain instanoes,
engage in transactions with their shareholders and affiliates.

Contract revenues from affiliated companies totaled approximately $1,104,000 during 2011.
The gross loss on these projects in 2011 totaled approximately $49,000. Accounts receivable
due from these companies amounted to approximately $30,000 (inciuded in contracts
Teceivable) as of December 31, 2011,

Sand leases a sclf storagc facility to a company affiliated throngh common ownership,
Monthly rental income ranges from $40,000 to $60,000 (Note M). For the year ended
December 31, 2011, gross rental income was $510,000, As of December 31, 2011, $90,000was
due to Sand for such rentals (Note C).




BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE C-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Contracts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2011:

In progress _ - § 1,859,349
Completed . . 115,949
 Retainage : ' : ' 1.606.122
3,581,420
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts : -(25.000)

3,556,420

Less: current portion. 2,027,208 :
Long-term portion - . $.1520212

~ Retainage receivable of approximately $1,529,000 is expected to be collected during the year
ended December 31, 2013, when the respective contract is expected to be completed.

Accounts receivable - other, consists of amounts due from employees for payroll advances
made during the year and self storage facility rental income receivable (Note B). These
amounts totaled $27,206 and $90,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2011,

- NOTE D--COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

Costs and estimated earnings on contracts in progress consist of the following at December 31,
2011: o '

Costs incurred on contracts in progress: | $46,312,515
Estimated earnings on contracts in progress: 5,730,051
Less i)iﬁings to date: . | , | (46.897.209) -
Césts and estimated earnings in excess of billings $ 5145357
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- BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND -
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENI‘S--Continucd_

NOTE E--PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists. of the following at December 31, 2011:

Buildings and improvements $ 355443
Self stoxage facility - ' : ' © 3,494,956
Furniture and figtures 388,032
Machinery and equipment . - 4,296,273
Vehicles 2,905,064
Vessel _ 777,200
o o 12,416,968
Less: accumulated depreciation (8,154.923)
4,262,045
Land . . 532,081
$. 4794126

| Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $1,000,654.

NOTE F--LINE OF CREDIT

Bergeron has a secured line of credit which permits maximum borrowings up to $4,000,000,
with interest at the Wall Strect Journal prime rate (3.25% at December 31, 2011), with a floor
0f3,75%. Interest on outstanding borrowings under this line of credit is payable monthly with
the onistanding borrowings due in July 2012. Borrowings on this line are collateralized by
substantially all of Bergeron’s assets, as well as assignments of all rents and leases. As of
December 31, 2011 $3,432,931, was drawn on the line of credit.

The line of credit provides for up to $1,500,000 in letters of credit to be issued and available
against the line. As of December 31, 2011, a letter of credit in the amount of $559,666 was
issued (Note H). As a result, as of December 31, 2011, only an additional $7,403 was available
to be drawn on the line of credit.

The line of credit includes, among other requirements, certain financial covenants which
require the Companies to maintain a minimum combined tangible net worth and a maximum
loan to value ratio. Additionally, Sand and the majority shareholder of Bergeron and Sand
guarantee the line of credit. '
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
. AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE G--LONG-TERM DEBT

Current maturities of long-term debt consists of notes payable to various entities in varying
monthly installments ranging from approximately $1,300 to $5,500, including interest at rates
up to 2.35%, maturing at various dates through 2012 and colfateralized by certain equipment.

NOTE H--COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases: The Companies rent construction equipment and vehicles, which are primarily
utilized on their job sites. The remaining lease terms range from one to three years. The

Companies also have numerous month-to-month equipment leases. Rental expense on all
operating leases amounted to approximately $689,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Approximate minimum annual rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases are as
follows: '

Xecar ended December 31,

2012 , $ 231,000
2013 176,000
2014 | 80.000

- 3. 487,000

Litigation: The Companies are exposed to various asserted and unasserted potential claims
encountered in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Companies’ combined financial

position or resulfs of operations.

Environmental Matters: Substantially all of the Companies’ facilities are subject fo Federal,
State and Local regulations in connection with oil and spirits storage tanks and the disposal of
tires and batteries into the environment. Compliance with these provisions has not had, nor do
the Companies expect such compliance to have, any material effect upon the capital
expenditures, net income, combined financial condition or competitive position of the
Companies. Management believes that its current practices and procedures for the control
and disposition of such wastes comply with applicable Federal, State and Local requirements.
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

NOTE H--COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES--Continued
Letter of Credit: Bergeron has an irrevocable standby letter of credit (“LOC”) of $559,666,

expiring in July 2012 (Note F). The LOCwas issned in favor of Bergeron’s workers
. compensation insarance program. No amounts have been drawn against the LOC.,

NOTE I- -SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

At December 31, 2011, Bergeron had 100 shares of common stock (par value of $50)
" authorized, issued and oufstanding. .

At December 31, 2011, Sand had 50 shares of common stock (no par value) authonzed and 6
-shares issued and outstanding.

Combined sharcholders’ equity at December 31, 2011, consisted of the following:

‘ _Bergeron, Sand _Combined
Common stock $ 5000 § 5000 § 10,000
Additional paid-in capital 16,461,492 6,176,915 - 22,638,407
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) _ (10,810.410) 566,646 (10.243.764)
Shareholders” equity '
at December 31, 2011 £ 5656082 3§ 6748561  $12404,643

During the year ended December 31, 2011, one of Bergeron’s shareholders contributed
$6,250,000, which is included in additional paid in capital.

NOTE J--MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Revenues from State and Local government comtract and subcontract work were
approximately $42,602,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Contracts receivable and

contract retainage due from the respective customers at December 31, 2011 amounted to
approximately $1,920,000 and $1,532,000, respectively.
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC,

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—~Continued

NOTE K--MAJOR VENDORS

Purchases from two of the Companies’ suppliers amounted to approximately $11,867,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2011. Accounts payablé and retainage payable due to these
vendors at December 31, 2011 amounted to approximately $1,009,000 and $621,000,
respectively. : ' : : ' ‘

NOTE L--CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financiai instraments which potentially expose the Companies to concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and contracts receivable.

The Companies maintain cash accounts at various financial institutions where the accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corperation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000 per company
and financial institution. To date, no losses have been incurred. As of December 31,2011, the
Companies maintained cash balances in these accounts in excess of the FDIC insured
threshold of approximately $7,585,000.

The Companies’ coniracts receivable from State and Local government contract and
subcontract work were approximately $3,452,000 at December 31, 2011.

NOTE M--SELF STORAGE FACILITY RENTAL

Sand owns a self storage facility whose operations are managed by Florida Secure Self Storage,
Inc. (“Storage™), a company affiliated through common ownership. Sand entered into alease
agreement in 2001 with Storage whereby Storage is required to pay Sand the excess of rental
revenues over opeiating expenses on a monthly basis. In 2011 lease payments to Sand ranged
from approximately $40,000 to $60,000 per month (Note B). For the year ended December 31,
2011, the rental income from Storage amounted to $264,637, net of depreciation and real
estate taxes and is included in other income in the accompanying combined statement of
income.
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.,
"~ AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Continued

- NOTE N--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

. The Companies participate in a c!eﬁned contsibution plan (the “Plan”) covering substantially '
all of their employees. Employer contributions to the Plan are discretionary. The Companies
contributed approximately $27,000 to the Plan during 2011,
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[3387769) 33810 . -
LB . - 159212
555,443 - - 555443
- 3494956 . 3434956
g0z . . - 438032
A85273 . . 36273
2905064 . - 2505064
00 : . JT7200
e pioist - ey
) 57, -
L751 . 2407445 . - &2 ME
15250 S1653 . 2081
179352 3BI4ZT4 - [
3 13, 3 £754,005 $ - Risya




LIABILITIES AND SHARBHOLDERS EQUIXY

CURRHENY LYABILYFIES:

Line nf eredit

Current maturities of long-terms dabt

Accomuis yayabls

Ascrued expenses.

Comznt portion of relaitiuge payabic

BETAINAGE PAYABLE, Jeas current portion
TOTALLTABILITIES

COMMITMENTS ANT: CONTINGENCTES )

See sccompanyiog independent avditors' report,

BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERONSAND & ROCK. MINING, INC.

COMEINING RALANCE SHEBYS-continued

BERQERDN EAND

BERGERGN
DEVELOPMENT, INC. SAND & ROCK _
ANDSUBSIDIARIES =~ | MININGING ==~ _ ELSMINATIONS = COMEINED
$ 348209 [ - - § 3432951
25,565 . - 25,563
ZE61E 469 354 - 2653513
s04217 - - Ltk
76386 - - g8 -
6158066 35444 6,193,510
1265400 - L355400
. Bass 3544 - 5088910 -
5000 - - 5,000 o
- 16461402 6175915 - 22,638,407
{10,216,410) 366,646 . (18.245.764)
5,656,082 6,748,561 - 12404,643
OIS Y SO ST T N . 8 Jesssm




Revwemyes fiom eonteacts
Costof revernies rom confracts

GROSE PROFITFROM CONTRACTS
Grmnad and admdaistritive expences.

INCOME (1.OS5) FROM OFERATIONS

Other fcome, et
NETTNCOME

Seeaceompangicy fudependent auditors report

BERGHERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF INCOME
¥FAR BNDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

BERGERON LAND RERGERON
TEVELOPMENT, BENC SAND & ROCK

—ANDSUBSIDIARIES =~ MONGLING.

¥ 44915011
41800698

3025313
2305 155

s uss
lﬂm
smsan
260,781 4437
164,332 84379)
150,365 DB
$ N7 3 m0302

120,158
A8t

3 535,199
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BERGERON LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES AND
BERGERON SAND & ROCK MINING, INC.

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF EARNINGS (LOSSES) FROM CONTRACTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER. 31, 2011
. Costof
Revenues Revenues Giross
Barned Bamed Profit (Loss)
Contracts in process at year-end $ 43,986,357 $ 37286201 % 4,700,156
" Contracts complefed during the year ' ' 2,979,654 2954342 (24,688)
Unallocated indivect costs . R 1,650,155 (1,650,155)

$ 44916011 $ 41890698 & 3025313

See aecompanying independent auditors' report.
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Guaranty



GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Sun-Bergeron, JV (the "Proposer”) has submitted herewith a Bid in response to the City of
Deerfield Beach (City's} Invitation to Bid No. 2012-13/22 for Recyclables Processing Services
(“the {TB").

The Guarantor identified below hereby certifies that it will irrevocably, absolutely and
unconditionally guarantee pursuant to the terms of the [TB the performance of alt of the Bidder's
obligations under the Contract and the |TB in the event the Proposer is selected for execution of
the Contract by the City.

Southern Waste Holdings Management, LLC. and
Southern Waste Systems Holdings, LP

Name of Guarantor

Anthony L omangino
Name of Authorizeg Signatory

Signature

Manager
Title

FTLDOCS 6214274 1



(the “Proposer"} has submitted herewith a Bid in response fo the City of
(City’'s} Invitation to Bid No. 2612-13/22 for Recyclables Processing Services

FTLDOCS 6214275 1



